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Notice is hereby given that the 28™ Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of M/s. IFCT
Financial Services Limited will be held by Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio Video Means
(OAVM) on Friday, September 29t%, 2023 at 3:00 PM to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Approval and Adoption of Financial Statements for Financial vear 2(022-23:

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended on March 31, 2023, together with the Board of Directors' Report and Auditors' Repott

thereon and including annexures thereto and thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),

the following resolution, as an Ordinary resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, together with Board of Directors’ Report and the

Auditors Report thereon, including annexures thereto be and are hereby approved and adopted.”

- To appoint Shri. Ramesh Dharmaji (DIN: 01186341) in place of Shri. Jayesh Amichand Shah
(DIN 0882080), who retires by rotation at the 28" Annual General Meeting and has expressed his

desire to be not re-appointed upon the expiry of term and to consider and thought fit, to pass with

or without modification, the following resolution, as an Ordinary resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the retirement of Shri

Jayesh Amichand (DIN: 0882080), who retires by rotation at the 28" Annual General Meeting

and who has expressed his desire not to seek re-appointment upon expiry of his term at this

Annual General Meeting be and is hereby noted.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, Shri
Ramesh Dharmaji (DIN: 01186341) be and is hereby appointed as a Director in the place of Shri,
Tayesh Amichand Shah (DIN 0882080), who has retired by rotation at this Annual General
Meeting,” |

| “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby

authorized to digitally sign and file the necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies,

.
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Chennai and inform other statutory authorities as may be necessary in connection with the

above appointment.”

3. Appointment and Fixation of Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for Financial vear 2022-23.

To fix remuneration of the Statutory Auditor of the Company in terms of the provisions of

Section 139(5) and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and to pass the following resolution, with or

without modification(s}, as an Ordinary resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT pursusnt to the provisions of Section 139(5) and 142 and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in

force) the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to decide and fix the

remuneration of the Statutory Auditor of the Company to be appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India (CAG) for the Financial Year'2022-23, as may be deemed fit.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4. To appoint Smt S Karpagam (DIN: (9755388) as Managing Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) if any, the following

resolution as an “Ordinary Resolution”
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 152, 161, 196, 197 and 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules

made thereunder [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time

being in force] Smt S Karpagam (DIN: 097553 88), who was appointed by the Board of Directors as

an Additional Director and designated as Managing Director with effect from 03.10.2022 be and is

hereby appointed as Managing Director of the company for the petiod of one years with effect from

03.10.2022 on the terms & conditions and remuneration as set out in the lefter of Deputation issued
by IFCL”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby

authorized to digitally sign and file the necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies, Chennai

and inform other statutory authorities as may be necessary in connection with the above

appointment,”
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S. To appoint Mr. Sanjay Pote (DIN: 08085505) as a Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) if any, the following
resolution as an “Ordinary Resolution”

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 152 and 161 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thercof for the time being in force) Mr. Sanjay Pote (DIN:
08085505) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director w.e.f.
12.05.2023 be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company and liable to retire by
rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to digitally sign and file the necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies, Chennai
and inform other statutory authorities as may be necessary in connection with the above

appointment.”

By Order of the Board
For IFCI Financial Services [F?Zed
A i

Q.MQP@“)

JM Sathyavathi
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date:05.09.2023
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Important Notes:

1. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated April
13,2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5th, 2020 , clarification circular No. 02/2021 dated
January 13th, 2021 and General Circular 3/2022 dated May 3, 2022 and General Circular10/2022
dated December 28 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs(collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars "), permitted the holding of Annual General Meeting (AGM) through VC/ QAVM,
without pfzysfcal presence of the member at common Venue, Hence, Members can attend and

- participate in the ensuing AGM though VC/OAVM,
2. The members have the option to participate in the meeting cither in person or through Video |
Conferencing (VC)/Other Audic-Visual Means (OAVM),

3. In compliance with applicable provisions of the Act read with the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the
Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM, the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed 1o
be conducted at the Corporate Office of the Company at Continental Chambers, 3rd Floor, 142 M
G Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai- 600034, Tamil Nadu which shall be the deemed venue of the
AGM |

4. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to

appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circular, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, through VC/OAVM facility, physical attendance of members has been dispensed
with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for
the AGM through video conferencing and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not
annexed to this Notice.

3. However, the Body Corporates members (i.e. other than individuals) are entitled to appoint

quthorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat. The body

corporate are required o Jorward a scanned copy or hard copy of iis board or governing body’s
resolution/authorization letter efc. authorizing their representatives io attend the AGM. The said
resolution/authorization shall be sent to the Company by email through its registered email address
fo cs@ifinltd.in or sathyavathi@ifinltd.in the hard copy can be send at Continental Chambers, 3¢
Floor, 142 MG Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai- 600034,

6.  Those Shareholders whose email IDs are not registered are requesied to register their email ID

?,.
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with the company by sending E-mail to cs@ifinltd.in along with the following credentials: i. Name
registered as per the records of the company ii. DPID-Client ID/ Folio Number iii. Email ID to be
registered for attending the Meeting. _

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names
as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to voie at the AGM,

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OA VM mode 15 minutes before.and after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by foﬂdwing the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for all shareholders
of the company. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding), Promoters, Iustitutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors, who are allowed to attend the Annual General Meeting without
restriction on account of first come first served basis. ' '

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Members will be allowed to pose questions during the course of the Meeting. The
questions/queries can also be given in advance at cs@ifinltd.in will be suitably replied by the
company during the Meeting, if time permits '

As per the MCA Circulars, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the
Company at www.ifinltdin and the notice along with the Annual Report is being sent through
electronic mode to the members whése E-mail ID are registered with the company. Members may
note that the Notice will also be available on the Company’s website at www.ifinltd.in. Further,
updation if any, will be provided on the website of the Company at www.ifinltd.in .

All documents referred to in the Notice calling the AGM and the Explanatory Statement are open
for inspection electronically and/or at the registered office of the company during the office hours
between 9.30 AM to 11.30 AM on all working days except Saturday. The same shall be shared with
the members on receipt of request. The members desiring to inspect the relevant documents referred
are requirved to send request on the email address- gs@ifinltd.in. An extract of such documents
would be send to the members on their registered email address.

The route map for the venue of AGM is noi annexed to this notice as the AGM is being conducted

through Video conferencing and/or other audio visual means.

€

|
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14, Details of Directors secking appointment or re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting of the
company to be held on Thursday, September 29", 2023 are provided in Annexure - A of this nofice.

15, For any queries & clarifications, members can contact through e-mail on cs@ifinitd.in or 044-
2830 6613 |

16. The r{zfevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect

of Special Businesses, as set out above is annexed hereto.
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T
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. AGM through VC/OAVM: Members will be provided with a facility fo attend the AGM through video
conferencing platform —Lifesize.

2. Members whose email IDs are not fegistered with the company, may get their email IDs registered
with the company by Semfing E-mail to cs@ifinltd.in along with the Jfollowing credentials. i. Name
?;egz'srered as per rhé records of the company ii. DPID-Client ID/ Folio Number iii, Email ID fo be
registered for attending the Meeting. In case of joint holding, the credentials of the first named
holder shall be accepted.

3. The invitation to join the .A GM will be sent to the Members on their registered email IDs latest by
Seprember 28%, 2023, This will be done on first come first served basis.

4. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through videc conferencing platform, by
Joliowing the invitation Jink sent to their registered email ID., Members will be able to locate
Meeting ID/ Password/ and JOIN MEETING tab. By Clicking on JOIN MEETING they will be
redirected to Meeting Room via browser or by running Temporary Application, In order to join the
Meeting, follow the step and provide the required details (mentioned above — Meeting
Id/Password/Email Address) and Join the Meeting. Members are encouraged fo join the Meeting
through Lapiops for better experience,

5. In case of Android/Iphone connection, Participants will be required to download and Install the
appropriate application as given in the mail to them. Application may be downloaded from Google
Play Store/ App .Sa‘ore.

6. Further Members will be required ro allow Camera and use Internet audio settings as and when

asked while serting up the meeting on Mobile App.

7. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tuablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is thevefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches. Use of headphones is highly recommended,

8. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM may contact Ms. JM Sathyavathi,

Company Secretary by sending an email request at the email id: cs@ifinltd.in or Contact on — 044-
28306613.

m. I




28 Annual Report ~ 2022-23

Meetings attended
during the Year
(2022-23)

Annexure — A :
Details of the Directors seeking Appointment/Re-Appointment in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting:
Name of the Mr. Ramesh Ms. S Karpagam Mr.Sanjay Pote
Director Dhafmaji |
Date of Birth February 7, 1959 August 12,1973 March 11,1975
Date of | September 29,. 2023 October 04, 2022 May 10,2023
Appointment
Expertise in | Promotion, Financial Services Business Development,
Specific Development and Finance
functional area Financing of MSMEs
Qualification M.Com., Post Graduate | B.Com., CMA MBA
Management Diploma,
Certified associate of
Indian  Inmstitute  of
Bankers
Experience 38 vyears In Banking | 28 plus years in 24 years of venerable
Service Financial Services experience in financial
service
Directorships  in | Nil 1. IFIN 1. IFIN Commodities
other Companies Commodities Limited
Limited 2. Stockholdings
2. IFIN Credit Services Limited
Limited
3. IFIN Securities
Finance Limited
Number of Board | NA 2 -
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Chairmaw/
Membership of the
Committee across

all Companies

IFCI Financial

Services Limited

a) Member in
Audit
Committee  of
the Board

b) Member of
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee  of
the Board

¢) Member of Risk
Management
Committee  of
the Board

d) Member of IT
Strategy
Committee  of
the Board

¢} Chairman of
share  Transfer
Committee  of
the Board

TKIN Securities

Finance Limited

a) Member of

Audit Committee of

the Board

b) Member of

Nomination and

L S—
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Remuneration
Committee of the

Board

c) Chairman of

Risk Comumnittee

d) Chairman of
Asset Liability
Management
Committee

©) Chairman of
Share Transfer
Committee of the
Board

IFIN Commodities
Limited

a)} Chairman of

Share  Transfer

Committee
IFIN Credit
Limited

a) Chairman of

Share  Transfer

Committee
Shareholding  in | Nil Nil Nil
the Company
Relationship with | Nil Nil Nil

other Directors
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TOQO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013;
Item no. 4:

Smt. S. Karpagam was appointed as an Additional Director in the Board Meeting held on 3®
October, 2022, in accordance with the provisions of Sectioni52, 161, 196, 203 and Rule § of the
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personmel) Rules 2014 read with Schedule
'V of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to Section

161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director can hold office only up to the date of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company. Further, in the same meeting i.e. meetiﬁg held on 3%
October, 2022 the Board appointed Smt, S. Karpagam as the Managing Director of the Company,

with immediate effect, for a period of one year subject to the approval of the shareholders.

Smt, S. Karpagam is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of

Companies Act, 2013 and has given her consent to act as Director. The Nomination & Remuneration

Committee and the Board have completed a formal annual evaluation of her performance based on

the evaluation criteria as set in the Nomination and Rennmeration Policy of the Company.

The Board is of the opinion that the appointment and presence of Smt. S. Karpagam on the Board as
the Managing will be desirable, beneficial and in the best interest of the Company. The Board
recommends the resolution set out in item no. 4 of the accompanying Notice for approval and

adoption of the Members.

None of the Directdrstey Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives, except Smt. S.
Karpagam herself, is in any way concerned or interested, in the said resolution. The Board

recommends the said resolution to be passed as an ordinary resolution.

Item no. 5:

Mr. Sanjay Pote (DIN: 08085505) was appointed as an Additional Director in the Board Meeting
held on 12,05.2023, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,

read with the Articles of Association of the Company, Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act,

L
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I
2013, the above director holds office only up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of
the Company. Mr. Sanjay Pote is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of

Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 and has given his consent to act as Director,

The Board is of the view that the appointment of Mr. Sanjay Pote as Director is desirable and would
be beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends the said Resolution No. 5 for approval by the

members of the Company.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives, except Mr. Sanjay

Pote himself, is in any way concerned or interested, in the said resolution. The Board recommends

the said resolution to be passed as an ordinary resolution,
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BOARD’S REPORT

To
The Members of
IFCI Financial Services Limited

The Board of Directors of vour Company preéents the 28% Annual Report of IFCI Financial Services

Limited, together with the Audited Financial Statement, for the vear ended March 31, 2023,

i. Financial Results

(Rs. in lakh)
Standalone Consolidated
Particulars
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Operating Results:
Income from Operations 1355.74 1685.40 1497.55 1832.08
Other Income 238.06 401.35 271.32 450.81
Gross Income 1393.50 2086.75 1768.87 2282.89
Gross Expenditure 1681.96 1809.43 1874.32 202218
Profit/ {Loss) before Exceptional item,
Interest, Depreciation and Tax (83.16) 27732 (105.45) 260.71
Less: Interest & BG Charges 0.51 9.67 2.11 10.35
Proﬁt;’(‘Lo.ss) before Exceptional Item, (88.67) 267.65 (107.56) 250,36
Depreciation and Tax
Less: Depreciation 16.53 9.67 18.29 12,88
Profit before Exceptional item and tax (105.20) 257.98 (125.85) 23748
Less:
Impa?rment on financial I]_.‘l'stru,ment 3939 150.98 50.84 152.81
Inpairment of Investment in
o . 237.69 - - - -
Subsidiary Companies
Profit before Tax (382.28) 107.00 {176.69) 84.67
Less: Taxes ' - i {6.03) 12.62
Profit after tax (382.28) 107.00 {170.66) 72.05
Other Cowprehensive Income (47.08) 28.14 (51.77) 32.65
Total Comprehensive Income (429.306) 135.14 (222.43) 104,70
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2. Financial Performance

Operating Income of IFIN had decreased to Rs.13.56 Crore during FY 2022-23 from Rs.16.85
crore during FY 2021-22. Other Income also decreased to Rs.2.38 crore in FY 2022-23 from
Rs.4.01 crore in FY 2021-22, Thus, the total income during PY 2022-23 at Rs.15.94 crore was
24% lesser than the total income of Rs.20.87 crore during the corresponding previous year of FY
2021-22. Out of Total expeﬁses, Employee Cost slightly decreased to Rs.7.45 crore in FY 2022-
23 from Rs_.7.53 crore in 2021-22, mainly due to reductions in the manpower count. Depreciation
and Amortization Expense increased to Rs.16.53 lakh in FY 2022-23 from Rs.9.67 lakh in FY
2021-22. However, Finance Cost substantially decreased to Rs.0.51 lakh in FY 2022-23 from
Rs5.9.67 lakh in FY 2021-22. Other Expenses were increased as the previous year at Rs.4.37 crore
in FY 2021-22 as compared to Rs.4.58 crore in FY 2022-23. During the year Impairment of
financial Insttument provided for Rs. 0.39 Crore mainly consists of Mr. Ekambaram receivables
of Rs. 0.26 Crore. And also Impairment of Investment in Subsidiary Companies provided for

Rs.2.38 Crore. After taking into account the above, there was a deficit of income over

expenditure of Rs.3.82 crore in FY 2022-23 as compared to excess of income over expenditure of |

Rs.1.07 crore in FY 2021-22. The company eamed a Loss after tax of Rs.3,82 crore during FY

2022-23 as compated to the profit of Rs. 1.07 crore in the previous year 21-22. Other

Comprehensive income in FY 2022-23 was Rs, (47.08) lakh compared to Rs. 28.14 lakh in the

previous year,

3. Operational Performances

3.1 Stock Broking
The Broking Income of IFIN has decreased to Rs. 1068.56 lakhs during the FY 2022-23 as against
Rs. 1299.40 lakhs during the corresponding previous FY 2021-22.

3.2 Insurance Commission _
Insurance Commission earned during the year is Rs. 0.99 Lakh for the FY 2022-23 (previous year
actuals was at Rs 1.91 lakhs).
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3.3 Brokerage from Selling of Mutual Funds/TPO/Bonds

During the vear, the company has earned an income of Rs.106.11 lakhs in the FY 2022-23 from
Selling of mutual fund units as compared to Rs. 195.37 lakhs in the previous reporting year 2021-22.

3.4 Depository Segment

The Company operated as the Depository Participants of both NSDL and CDSL during the year for
the benefit of its retail and institutional client base. Total Income received during the yéar 2022-23
was Rs.80.50 lakhs (previous year Rs, 107.48 lakh)

3.5 Non Fund Based Activity — Syndication, Merchant Banking and Investment Banking
During the year the Company has earned gross income of Rs. 32.78 lakh (Previous Year- Rs, 11.75
lakh) in this product,

.- Business Environment

India again emerged as a leader for the consecutive second year among Exchange market size in
terms of volumes both equally contributed by Retail and Institutions. The year under review was
marked by significant global challenges. The Russia-Ukraine war disrupted the global supply chain
and led to heightened energy inflation across major developed economies. This, coupled with China’s
pandemic induced lockdown, impacted economic recovery in Asia and the rest of the world.
According to the IMF, risks are significantly skewed to the downside as a result of the amplification
of financial sector turbulence, the development of the Russia-Ukraine war and the continuance of a
high inflation trajectory, making monetary policy a tightrope walk.

As a result, the global economy faced uncertainty and cautious sentiment throughout the year.
Economy and capital markel prosperity despite the challenging global environment, India emerged as
a bright spot in the global economy. With a 7.2% GDP growth in FY 2022- 23, India became the
fastest-growing major economy.

This growth was achieved despite high inflation, muted rural demand, monetary tightening, and
increased interest rates. India’s resilience was reflected in its equities, which outperformed developed
and emerging market counterparts. Unlike other markets, India’s equity performance was not
dependent on international inflows but driven by strong domestic investor participation. The Nifty 50

Index ended the year with a modest 0.6% loss, outperforming global indices. Whereas, BSE Sensex

K.
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index closed 422.9 points higher on March 31, 2023 from a year ago. In percentage terms, the Sensex
moved higher by only 0.7% in 2022-23, the worst performance in the past three years. The resilience
has been consistent over the last three years, with the Nifty 50 Index showing strong growth
compared to global indices. Domestic institutional investors played a significant role in driving this
optimism by invésting aggressively in Indian equities. This optimism and confidence in India’s story

were key themes in the performance of the Indian markets during the last financial year.

Indian Exchanges gradually transformed setilement process from T+2 day to T+1 day. Indian stock
exchanges became one and only the fastest settlement procéssed among Global markets. The first
batch of securities transitioned to T-+1 Settlement on February 25, 2022, and thereafter, every month a
batch of around 500 securities transitioned to T-+1 Settlement. From January 27, 2023, all securities
ie., equity shares including SME shares, exchange traded funds, Government Bonds and Corporate

Bonds trading in the equity segment were settled on T+1 basis.

NSE remained the largest derivatives exchange in the world in terms of number of contracts traded
for the fourth successive year. It moved a notch higher and ranked third globally in terms of the
number of trades in the cash equiﬁes segment in 2022. In the domestic markets, NSE maintained its
leadership position in the Capital market and Equity derivative segments, with a market share of 93%

and near-100% respectively. There was a phenomenal Growth in new listing post IPOs also.

On September 1, 2021, the final phase of SEBI's peak margin rules kicked in, in the Indian stock
market. These rules have been put into effect to contain excessive intra-day speculation which
involves high risk, especially in the futures and options (F&QO) segment. However, subsequent to this,
SEBI through the circular insisted Members to maintain cash and cash collateral portion of upfront
margins also during the Q4 of 2021-22, which brought down the volumes especially clients availing
exposures based on only collateral portion of pledged stocks. During the last quarter of 2022-23,
exchanges further started insisting on Beginning of the day allocation of client’s margins to be
reported before the starting of the trading on daily basis. Our average no of 7500 trades was hit by

around 25% of the volumes compared to earlier quarters.




(SN 28" Anmual Keport 2022-23

5. Qutlook:

Diversification on Revenue is fhe main focus.

The Indian brokerage industry has undergone rapid changes in its business environment in last three
fiscals, starting with a surge in customer accretion, business volume, pick-up in flat brokerage model
to rising proportion of derivatives volumes. In recent quarters, brokerages seemed to undergo a
structural shift from aggressive client addition to maintaining profitability amid rising compliance
cost, through improvement in unit economics.

The broking segment, especially retail broking, has become increasingly dynamic. Entry of new
players, digitization and regulations have changed the way business has been shaping up. Post Lock
‘down, broking industry witnessed a sea change in competitive pricing, increased support on Digital
platforms. Broking houses are now restructuring their business strategy to diversify revenue streams
focusing on Value added services, including wealth management, research, advisory. Financial
planning has been the focus to ensure maximum customer’s engagement and enrich wealth creation
journey of clients. Fund based activity, including margin funding and loan against shares (through
NBFC), is expected to enable sustained contribution to earnings. Further, revenue growth for the
broking industry is expected fo moderate to 10% growth in FY23-24 to be flattish with consolidation
in industry benefiting few traditional brokers.

SEBI has been undertaking tightening of regulations amid increase in derivative volume, which is
likely to increase compliance cost for intermediaries and may eventually also lead to a rise in
brokerage rates, though timing and extent of price revision .of the same is difficult to guess. At an
aggregate level, moderation in client accretion, tightening of regulations and higher compliance cost
are seen leading to a gradual consolidation in the industry.

Traditional Brokerage houses facing rising margin requirements at clearing corporations mean that
brokers need to raise additional money to maintain adequate margins with clearing corporations due
to regular operational changes insisted by Regulators to protect Investors Interest. In addition, the
increasing number of investors from tier 2 and 3 cities provides a huge opportunity for firms that can

quickly move to offer remote digital services.
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- Business model offering and diverse streams of product & services
Brokerage being the core revenue stream, accounts for a substantial proportion of revenue for the
industry. While new age brokers have been focusing on lower fixed brokerage, large incumbents are
gradually attempting to diversify their portfolio offering with rising focus on value added services
including advisory & research, financial planning, wealth management and margin trading facility.
Thus, the proportion of pure broking income has undergone a gradual decline over the years for a
majority. of the players. In our view, large established full-service incumbents, with diverse product
and services act as one stop for all financial needs of customers. In the past few years, the cost
structure and operational efficiency of brokerages has improved amid higher utilization of
technology. Further, players are now focused on quality of customer and payback period to ensure
improvement in unit economics. Thus, acquisition of quality revenue-generating customers and

providing strong value-added services will remain key to sustainable earnings growth ahead.

MTF Products to sustained Growth prospects:

Tn the last two fiscals, the margin funding book witnessed healthy growth amid increasing volume
and participation. Going ahead, the performance of the margin funding book would remain sensitive
to capital market trend. We expect margin funding book of the brokerage industry, especially larger
peers, to remain steady and continue to contribute significantly to revenue.

Increasing compliance Cost

SEBI seems to be concerned about a continued rise in derivatives volumes due to higher margin
impositions, Option volumes are on raise, especially increase in retail participation. Thus, SEBI with
the goal of ensuring safety of retail segment, has been undertaking tightening of rules in the last
fiscals. 100% Up front margin in cash intraday and F&O new margin rules are fully implemented
now. Such tightening in regulations is likely to increase compliance cost for intermediaries, which is
likely leading to continued consolidation in the industry due to high compliance and associated costs.

There is also proposals by the Regulators to extend the trading hours which might be eventually

implemented by exchanges

ASBA for stock payment for Secondary Market
SEBI has proposed a new mechanism - Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) -
wherein a direct channel of fund flow is to be created between the client and the clearing corporation

particularty for UPI mode. As per the proposal, funds shall remain in the account of the client but will

— R —
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be blocked in favour of the clearing corporation till the expiry date of the block mandate or till the
block is released. This move is to curb any malpractice in handling of client money by brokers and
also enable clients to keep earning interest when funds are blocked for trading. This move could
Impact brokers as it would reduce float money with intermediaries, which have been utilized to avail
bank guarantees and deposit with exchanges for position limits. Basiéally working capital needs will
also surge. It may impact brokers too as float income as proportion of topliﬁe revenue which may be

higher than diversified large brokers.

. Subsidiaries

6.1 IFIN Securities Finance Limited

IFIN Securities Finance Limited, a NBFC is a wholly owned subsidiary of IFCI Financial Services
Limited. It is engaged in the business of providing Loan against Shares, Mutual Funds and
Sovereign Gold Bonds ete.

6.2 IFIN Commodities Limited

IFIN Commodities Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of IFCI Financial Services Limited, was
incorporated to engage in the business of Commodity broking.

IFIN Commodities Ltd, a registered member of the Multi Commodity Exchange of India Ltd
(MCX), National Commodity and Derivatives Exchange Ltd (NCDEX) and National Spot
Exchange Limited (NSEL), is primarily engaged in the business of providing Commodity market

related transaction services.

6.3 IFIN Credit Limited
IFIN Credit Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of IFCT Financial Services Ltd. Currently it is not

engaged in any operation.

. Salient features of the financial statement under Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3} of section 129 read with rule 5 of

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 Form AOC-1 is given in Annexure-1.

. Dividend
No dividend is being recommended by the Directors for the year ended March 31, 2023,

5
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9. Transfer To Reserves

The Board of Directors have no proposal to carry on any amount fo general reserves for the year,

ended March 31, 2023, However, in the Consolidated Financial statements, the amount is transferred

to Statutdry Reserve as per Section 45 IC of RBI Act being one sub.sidiary a NBFC Company.

10. Directors and Kev Managerial personnel

Changes in Directors and KMP

>

»

»
S

Mr. KV Rao has resigned as Director on account of withdrawal of Nomination by IFCI
Limited W.E.F 03.10.2022. o

Ms, S Karpagam was appointed as Additional director and Managing Director of the company
with effect from 04.10.2022

Mr. Ramesh NGS, director has resigned as Director with effect from 17.04.2023.

Mr. Sanjay Pote was _appointcd as Additional director of the company with effect from
12.05.2023 _

Ms. Pragyan Shree has resigned as Conipany Secretary with effect from 19.05.2023.

Mr. Rajesh Kumar who retires by rotation at the 27 Annual General Meeting held on
September 29, 2022 was re-appointed as the director of the company.

Ms.JM Sathyavathi was appointed as Company Secretary with effect from 24.07.2023,

Shri Jayesh Amichand (DIN: 0882080), director will retire by rotation at the conclusion of the

ensuing Annual General Meeting and expressed his desire not to be re-appointed.

The Board wishes to place on record its gratitude and appreciation for the valuable contributions

made by all the Directors / KMPs who have resigned from their respective offices during their tenure

in the Company.

As at March 31%, 2023, the Board consisted of 6 Directors comprising of 2 Nominee Director, 3 Non-

Executive Director and 1 Managing Director.

The composition of the Board, number of meetings held, attendance of the Directors at the Board

Meeting and the number of the Directorship in other companies in respect of each Director who was

on Board as on March 31%, 2023 is given below:-
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_ No. of other
Attendance Particulars Directorships as on
315 March, 2023

lio. Name of Director No. of Meetings during the | Other Director-ships
tenure  of respective | (Including Private
directors in FY 2022-23 Limited Companies )
| Held Attended

T. | Shri Ramesh NGS 6 8

2. Shri Atul Saxena 6 6 2

3. Shri Jayesh Amichand Shah | 6 5 1

4, Shri Rajesh Kumar 6 6 3

5, Shri Alan Savio Pacheco 6 6 3

6. Shri § Karpagam 2 2 3

7 Shri Karra Visweswar Rao 4 4 NA

During the Financial Year 2022-23, Six (6) Board Meetiﬁgs were held, which are as follows:

19.05.2022 03.08.2022 30.08.2022
03.10.2022 04.11.2022 31.01.2023

The Non-Executive Directors except nominees of IFCI Ltd are paid sitting fees for every meeting of

the Board and its Committees attended by them.

11. Committees of the Board
11,1 Audit Committee

A. Composition

The Audit Committee of the Company presently consists of 2 Non- Executive Directors and one
Managing Director. The composition of the Audit committee and atiendance of directors at the
meetings for the FY 2022-23 is shown below:-

S. | Name of Director Designation No. of Committee Meetings dﬁring
No. the tennre of respective directors in
FY 2022-23.

I
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Held Attended
1. Shri Rajesh Kumar Chairman 6 6
_ (Non- executive Director)
2. Shri Jayesh Shah Member 6 5
(Non-executive Director)
3. Smt. S Kafpagam Member 3 .3
| {(Managing Director)
4, Shri Karra Visweswar | Member 3 3
Rao (Managing Director)

03.10.2022

*Shri Karra Visweswar Rao has resigned with effect from 03.10.2022
Smt, S Karpagam was appointed as additional director and Managing Director with effect from

The Managing Director / Whole-time Director, Chief Operating Officer, Statutory Auditors and

Internal Auditors are invited to participate in the meetings of the Audit Committee wherever

necessary, as decided by the committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit

Committee,

B. The number of Audit Committee Meetings held and dates:

Duiing the financial year 2022-23, the Audit Committee of Directors of the Company had conducted

5 (Five) meetings.

The dates of the meeting of Audit Committee of Board of Directors are as follows:

18.05.2022

03.08.2022

30.08.2022

03.11.2022

31.01.2023

10.03.2023 -

C. Terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Cominittee shall be in accordance with Section 177 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and shall include overseeing the vigil mechanism / Whistle Blower policy of

the Company.

11.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A, Composition

|
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company presently consists of 2 Non-

Executive Directors and Managing Director, The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee and attendance of directors at the meetings for the FY 2022-23 is shown below:-
S. Name of Director Category No. of Meetings during the tenure |
No. _ of respective directors in FY 2022-
| 23
Held Attended
1. Shri Jayesh Amichand | Chairman | 5 4
Shah (Non-executive Director)
2 Shri Rajesh Kumar Member 5 5
_ (Non- Executive Director)
3 *Shri.  Alan  Savio | Member 3 2
pacheco (Nominee Director)
4 Smt. S Karpagam Member 2 2
(Managing Director)
5 *Shri Karra Visweswar | Member | 3 3
Rao (Managing Director)
* Shri. Alan Savio Pacheco was inducted in the committee in its meeting held on 03.08.2022
*Shri Karra Visweswar Rao has resigned with effect from 03.10.2022 _
Smit. 8 Karpagam was appointed as additional director and Managing Director with effect from
03.10.2022

B. The number of meetings held and dates
During the financial year 2022-23, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Directors of the
Company had conducted 5 (Five) meetings.
The dates of the meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:
18.05.2022 03.08.2022 03.10.2022
03.11.2022 30.01.2023

C. Terms of reference:
The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is in accordance with Section

178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and includes:

dt
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% To approve the remuneration payable to directors and key managerial personnel (“KMP” as

defined by the Act).
*¢ Recommend to the boar_d the “formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive

attributes and independence of a director™.

¢ Recommend to the board the appoiﬁtment of directors.

4.

% Recommend to the board appointment of KMP and persons one level below KMP of the
Company. '

¢ Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance and support the board and independent

directors in evaluation of the performance of the board, its committees and individual directors.

4+
4

Recommend to the board the remuneration policy as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

-

Performing such other duties and responsibilities as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and

Board of directors from time to time,

11.3 Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors

A. Composition
The Risk Management Committee of the Com'pémy presently consists of 2 Non- Executive Directors
and one Managing Director, The composition of the Risk Management Committee and attendance of

directors at the meetings as on March 315, 2023 is shown below:-

S. Name of Director Category - No. of Meetings during the |
No. tenui;e - of respective
directors in FY 2022-23
Held Attended
1. Shri Jayesh Amichand | Chairman 4 3
Shah (Non-executive Director)
2 Shri Rajesh Kumar Member 4 4
(Non- Executive Director)
3 Shri Karra Visweswar | Member 2 2
Rao {Managing Director)
4 Smt. S Karpagam Member 2 2
| (Managing Director) l

I 5; 2 i _
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S. Name of Director Category No. of Meetings during the
No. | tenure of respective
| directors in FY 2022-23
Held Attended

*Shri Karra Visweswar Rao has resignéd with effect from 03,10.2022
Smt. 8§ Karpagam was appointed as additional director and Managing Director with effect from

03.10.2022

B. The number of meetings held and dates
During the financial year 2022-23, the Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors of the
Company had conducted 4 (Four) meetings.
The date of the meetings of Risk Management Committee are as follows:
18.05.2022 03.08.2022
03.11.2022 | 30,01.2023

11.4 Information Technology Strategy Committee of Board of Directors

A. Composition
The IT Strategy Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company presently consists of 2 Non-
Executive Directors and one Managing Director. The composition of the IT Strategy Committee and

attendance of directors at the meetings as on March 3 15, 2023 1s shown below:-

S. Name of Director Category No. of Meetings during the
No. tenure of respective
directors in FY 2022-23
Held Attended
1. | Shri Rajesh Kumar Chairman 5 5
(Non-executive Director)
2 Shri Jayesh Amichand | Member 5 4
Shah (Non- Executive Director)
3 Shri Karra Visweswar | Member 3 3
Rao (Managing Director)

I A
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S. Name of Director Category No. of Meetings during the
No. tenure of respective
directors in FY 2022-23
_ _ Held Attended
4 Smt S Karpagam Member _ 2 2
o (Managing Director)

*Shri Karra Visweswar Rao has resigned with effect from 03.10.2022
Smt. S Karpagam was appointed as additional director with effect from 03.10.2022

B.

During the financial year 2022-23, the IT Strategy Committee of Board of Directors of the Company

had conducted 5 (Five) meetings:

The number of meetings held and dates

The date of the meetings of are as follows:

18.05.2G22

03.08.2022

30.08.2022

03.11.2022

30.01.2023

11.5 Share Transfer Committce

A. Composition

The Share Transfer Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company presently consists of 2

members. The composition of the Share Transfer Committee and attendance of directors at the

meetings as on March 31%, 2023 is shown below:-

8. Name of Director Category No. of Mectings during the
No. tenure of  respective
directors in FY 2022-23
Held Attended
1. Shri K V Rao Chairman 1 1
(Managing Director)

89
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|
S. Name of Director Category No. of Meetings during the
| No. tenure of  respective
directors in FY 2022-23
_ Held Attended
2 Shri Alan Savio Pacheco | Member
(Nominee Director) ! !
3 Smt S Karpagam Chairmah
(Managing Director) ) )

" 11.7 General Meetings held during the Financial Year 2022-23,

12.

13.

During the financial vear 2022-23, the Share Transfer Committee of Board of Directors of the

Company had conducted one meeting (06.05.2022).

11.6 Other Committees

The Compaﬁy also has committees such as Internal Risk Committee, Internal Technology Committee

and Share Allotment Committee

The General Meetings of the company are held during the financial year are as under:

General Meeting

27% Annual General Meeting

Venue

Through Video Conferencing

Date and Day of

meeting

Thursday, September 29 2022

The above mentioned General Mecting did not pass any special resolutions.

Annusi Return

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the copy of the annual return in prescribed

format is placed on the website of the company and the web-link of such annual return is provided

below:

URL: t hitps://ifinltd.in/ Aboutus/Fmancials

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained

y
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by us, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134 (3) (¢} of the Companies

Act, 2013;

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

| judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 2022-23 and of the proﬁt and loss
of the company for that period; |

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the directors had devised proper systems fo ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Statement on_declaration given by independent directors under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of

the Companies Act, 2013,

As on March 31, 2023, there are no Independent Directors on the Board of your Company.

Policy en Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration and other details.

The Company’s policy on directors® appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
gualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-

section (3) of section 178 is made available through the following web;

URL: | hitps:/ifinltd in/Privacy-Policy ‘

Auditors

M/s. 8 Venkatram & Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Reg. No. 0046568) was appointed by
the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) as Statutory Auditor of your Company for FY
2022-23. C&AG shall appoint Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2023-24.
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17. Explanations/ Comments on the report of Compiroller & Auditor General of India

March, 2023 is attached Annexure-II to this report.

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) report on the accounts for the year ended 31st

18. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

19. Related Party Transactions

Companies Act, 2013 form part of the notes to the financial statement. .

Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties were in the ordinary course of business
and at Arm’s Length pricing basis. The transactions entered with the holding, subsidiaries and other
group company is as follows:
Sr. | Name (s) of the | Nature of contracts/ | Duration of the | Salient terms of the
No. | related party & nature | Arrangements/ contracts/ contracts or
of relationship transaction arrangements/ arrangements or
transaction transaction including the
value, if any
1 IFCI Limited- | Brokerage As per omuibus | Ordinary  course  of
Holding Company approval for FY | business
2022-23
DP Income received | As per omnibus | Crdinary  course  of
approval for FY | business
2022-23
Reimbursement of | As per terms of | Ordinary  course  of
MD Salary paid by | deputation business
IFCI Limited
Rent As per omnibus | Ordinary  course  of
approval for FY | business
2022-23
Deputation  salary [ As per ommibus | Ordinary  course  of
received approval for FY | business
2022-23
2 IFIN Securities | Reimbursement of | As per omnibus | Ordinary  course  of
Finance Limited - | office expenses | approval for FY | Business
Subsidiary company | received 2022-23
Brokerage Income As per cmuibus | Ordinary  course  of
approval for FY | business
2022-23
Commission income | As per the terms | Ordinary  course  of
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of agreement Business
Sharing of | As per ommnibus | Ordinary  course  of
manpower approval for FY | business
2022-23/ as per
terms of
deputation
Short Term | As per omnibus | Ordinary  course  of
Borrowings approval for FY | business
2022-23 _
IFIN  Commodities | Reimbursement of | Ongoing basis Ordinary  course  of
Limited — subsidiary | office expenses business '
company | received
Sharing of | Ongoing basis/ | Ordinary  course  of
manpower as per terms of | business
deputation
IFIN Credit Limited — | Reimbursement of | As per omnibus | Ordinary  course  of
Subsidiary Company | office expenses | approval for FY | business
received 2022-23
IFCI Factors Limited- | Reimbursement of | As per omnibus | Ordinary  course  of
Fellow subsidiary | expenses approval for FY | business
Company 2022-23
DP Income received | Asper omnibus | Ordinary  course  of
approval for FY | business
2022-23
IFCI Venture Capital | Brokerage As per omnibus | Ordinary  course  of
Fund Limited- Feilow approval for FY | business
subsidiary Company 2022-23
DP Income received | As per omnibus | Ordinary  course  of
approval for FY | business
2022-23
Stock Holding | Transaction charges | Asper omnibus | Ordinary  course of
Corporation of India approval for FY | business
Limited 2022-23
' MD Salary Asperterms of | Ordinary  course  of
deputation business

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year 2022-

23 which were in conflict with the interest of the Company.

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangement with related parties are given in notes to the financial

statement. Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act

read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure-IIl in Form
AOC-2,

_—
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The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and on Dealing
with related party transactions duly approved by the Board. The policy is available on the website of

the company at: https://www.ifinitd.in/Privacy-Policy

20, The details relating to deposits, covered under chapter V of the Act

During the Financial Year 2022-23, your Compény did not accept any deposits within the meaning of
provisions of chapter V ~ Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with rules thereunder,

21. Details of Frauds

There is no fraud as reported by Auditors during the year under review.

22. Material changes and commitments

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company

between the end of the financial year i.e. March 31, 2023 and the date of the report.

23. Conservation of energy, technology abserption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo &

expenditure on research and development

In view of the nature of activities which are being carried on by the Company, Section 134(3) () of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3} of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
conservation of energy and technology absorption does not apply to the Company.

However, the Company has taken measures to conserve energy by having energy efficient electronic
equipment. As regards absorption of technology, your Company has installed computer systems,
software packages and other office equipment to increase its organizational efficiency, maximize

Productivity and to gain competitive advantage.

Your Company has neither incurred any expenditure nor earned any income in foreign exchange.

Further, your Company has not incurred any expenditure on Research and Development.

24, Risk Management
The Company has formulated and put in place Risk Management and Surveillance Policy in order to

— Ok —
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mitigate risk related to the business of the Company. Surveillance and risk monitoring of the client
trading limit are very crucial part of trading system. Effective surveillance can achieve investor
protection, market integrity and safe guard of securities market and trading member. The factors
considered for designing exposure policy include Client Margin, Approved Collateral Stocks,
Volatility of the market, prevaﬂing market practice, etc. The Risk Management team of the Company
| takes effective measures in order to protect the intereét of the Company and investors as per the
policy of the Company. | |
The Company has also constituted Internal Risk Committee and Risk management committee at

Board Level to monitor and mitigate the risk and safe guard the interest of the company.

25. Internal Financial Control

The Company has put in place adequate Internal Financial Control commensurate with the size of the

Company and nature of its business.

The Company has also appointed M/s. IV Associates, Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors to
conduct internal audit of the fimctions and the activities of the Company. The findings and
recommendations of the Internal Auditors are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board on a

periodical basis and necessary corrective actions are being undertaken.

The Company has installed necessary software(s) for maintaining accuracy and completeness of

accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information.

26. Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy
Pursuant to Section 177(9) & Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has voluntarily established

a vigil mechanism which is overseen through the Board. Adequate safeguards against victimization of

employees and directors who express their concerns, forms part of the mechanism.
The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism for its director(s) and

employee(s) to report to the management their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected

fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy.

34
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Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee have been denied access to the Chairman

of the Board of Directors and that no complaints were received during the year.

27. Anti - Sexual Harassment Policy

The Company has in place Anti Sexual Harassmeﬁ Policy in line with the requirements of Prevention
of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibifion & Redressal} Act, 2013,

An internal Complaints Committee has been set up for redressal of complaints and that all employees
(permanent, cpntractual, temporary, frainees) are covered under this policy.

During the year under review, the company has not received any complaint pursuant to the provisions

of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

28. Formal Annual Evaluation of Board, Committees and Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors has reviewed the performance
of Board and its committees taking into consideration the contributions made by the directors/
members of the committee.

Subsequently, the Board has made formal annual evaluation of its own performance, and that of its
committees and individual directors taking into consideration the evaluation criteria as sef in the
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Since, there was no Independent Director on the Board of the Company during the financial year
2022-23 heﬁce, no Meeting of the Independent Directors could be held. As per notification dated June
05, 2015 for the induction of Independent Director on the Board of a Government Company, opinion
from concerned Minisiry or parent Department of the Central Government, which is administratively
in charge of the Company or as the case may be, the State Government, is required that the person
intending to act as Independent Director shall be a person of integrity and possess relevant expertise
and experience. Accordingly, in view of the above communication regarding appointment of requisite

number of Independent Directors have been sent to the concerned authorities and Parent Company.

29. Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the

Going Concern status and company’s operations in foture

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or Tribunals which

would impact the going concern status of the Company.
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30. Details_of employees under Section 197 read with Sub rule 5 (2) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

The company has no employee in respect of whom the information required under Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule § (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, is required to be given.

The Board further places on record its appreciation of the services of all the employees of the
Company. '

As per Notification dated June 5, 20135, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Government
companies are exempted to comply with the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rules made thereunder. Your company being a Government Company is exempted to

include the requisite information as a part of Director’s Report.

31, Application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016, ,
The Company has neither made any application nor are any proceedings pending under The

Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 during the year under review. Therefore, there are no details

required to be disclosed, as the said clause is not applicable as on year ended 31.03.2023,

32. The details of difference between amount of the Valuation done at the time of one time

settlement_and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institution

along with the reasons thereof.

The Company has not availed any one time settlement facility, during the year under review,

therefore providing of details with respect to difference in the amount of valuation done at the time of
one time Settlement and the Valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institution

does not apply to the company.

33, Acknowledgement

The Board of Directors express their gratitude for the co-operation, guidance and support recsived

from the IFCI Limited, Clients of the Company, Reserve Bank of India, Commercial Banks,
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Regulators, Statutory Authorities, Securities and Exchange Board of India, National Stock Exchange,

Bombay Stock Exchange,
stakeholders of the Company.

Place: Chennai
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companies/joint ventures

Part “A”; Subsidiaries
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Form AQC-1

(Pursuant fo first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate

{Information: in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Annexure - [

S. | Particulars Details Details Details
No.
1. | Name of the subsidiary IFIN Securities | TFIN IFIN Credit
Finance Limited Commodities Limited
. Limited
2. | Reporting .' period for the | Reporting Period | Reporting Period Repotting  Period
subsidiary concerned, if | same as holding { same as holding | same as holding
different from the hol ding | company’s company’s company’s
company’s reporting period
3. | Reporting currency and | Nil Nil Nil
Exchange rate as on the last date
of the relevant Financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries
4. | Share capital 30,01,00,000 5,00,00,000 2,50,00,000
5. | Reserves & surplus (65,71,598) (1,57,21,1609 (51,47,879)
6. | Total assets 29,49,04,675 6,07,20,353 1,99,02,368
7. | Total Liabilities 13,76,273 2,64,41,513 50,247
8. | Investments 2,54,00,011 Nil Nil
9. | Turnover 1,08,79,601 33,00,983 -
10, | Profit before taxation 32,90,750 (65,80,367) 80,490
11. | Provision for taxation (6,12,285) 0 9,126
12. | Profit after taxation 39,03,035 (65,80,367) 71,364

=9
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13. | Total Comprehensive Income 38,81,434 (70,28,428) 71,364
14, | Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil
15. | % of shareholding 100% 100% 100%

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Companies and Joint Ventures

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations; Nil

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Nil

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date Not Applicable
Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end Not Applicable
No. Not Applicable
Amount of Investiment in Associates/Joint Venture Not Applicable
Extend of Helding% Not Applicable
Description of how there is significant influence Not Applicable

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

Not Applicable

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet

Not Applicable

Profit/Loss for the year ‘Not Applicable
Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable
Not Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable

-Sd- -Sd-
A V Pushparaj S Karpagam
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director

Date: 05.09.2023
Place: Chennai

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

FOR IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

-Sd- -Sd-
Sanjay Pote JM Sathyavathi
Director Company Secretary
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Annexure-I1
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Form

(Pursuant to clause (k) of sub-section (3) of

I. Details of material contracts or arrangements or material transactions not at Atm’s length basis,

FORM NO. AOC -2

Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Annexure IIT

section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

for Disclosure of particﬁlars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with

related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

S.No. | Particulars Details

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil

b) Nature of contra.ctsfarra.ugementsftransaction Nil

c) Duration of the contracts/arran gements/transaction Nil

d} Salient terms of the contracts or drrangements or transaction including the [ Nil
value, if any

€) Justification for entering into such confracts or arrangements or | Nil

fransactions’

Date of approval by the Board

Nil

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

required under first proviso to section 188

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as | Nil

3. Details of all the transactions at Arm’s length basis are as follows:

St. | Name (s) of [ Nature of | Duration of the [ Salient terms of Date of | Amount 7
No. [the related | contracts/ contracts/ the contracts or | approval by | paid as
party & | Arrangements/ arrangements/ | arrangements or | the Board advances, if
nature of | transaction lransaction transaction any
telationship including  the
value, if any
IFCI Brokerage As per | Ordinary course | 19,05.2022 | Nil
Limited- ominbus of business and
Holding approval  for 10.03.2023
Company FY 2022-232
DP  Income | As per | Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
received omnibus of business and
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approval  for 10.03.2023
FY 2022-23
Reimburseme | As per terms Ordinary course | 15.05.2022 | Nil
nt of MD |ofdeputation | ofbusiness
Salary paid by
IFCI Limited
Rent As per | Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
omnibus of business
approval  for
FY 2022-23 _
Deputation As per | Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Ni]
salary received | omnibus of business
approval  for
FY 2022-23
IFIN Reimburseme | As per | Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
Securities nt of office | omnibus of Business
Finance expenses approval  for
Limited - | received FY 2022.23
Subsidiary Brokerage As per | Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
company Income omnibus of business
: approval  for
FY 2022-23
Sharing of | As per | Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
manpower omnibus of business
approval  for
FY 202223/
as per terms of
deputation
Short  Term | As per | Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
Borrowings omnibus of business
- approval  for
FY 2022-23
IFIN Rent and | As per | Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
Commodities | Reimburseme | omnibus of business
Limited  —|nt of office | approval for
subsidiary expenses FY 2022-23
company received
Sharing of fAs  per | Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | NiI
Manpower omnibus of business
approval  for
FY 2022-23/
as per terms of
deputation
IFIN  Credit | Reimburseme | As per | Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
Limited - |nt of office | omnibus of business

M3
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FY 2022-23

10.03.2023

Subsidiary expenses approval  for
Company received FY 2022-23
5 IFCI Factors | Brokerage As per Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
Limited- Income omnibus I of business and
Fellow approval for 10.03.2023
.| subsidiary FY 2022-23
Company DP  Income ;| As per Ordinary course | 19,05.2022 | Nil
received omnibus of business and
approval for

of deputation

IFCI Venture | Brokerage As per Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 [ Nil
Capital Fund omnibus of business and
Limited- approval for 10.03.2023
Fellow FY 2022-23
subsidiary DP  Income | As per Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
Company received omnibus of business and
approval for 10.03.2023
FY 2022-23 :
7 Stock Transaction As per Ordinary course | 19.05.2022 | Nil
Holding charges omnibus of business
Corporation approval for
of India FY 2022-23
Limited MD Salary As per terms 04.10.2022

Date: 05.09,2023

Place: Chennai

.Sd-

S Karpagam

Managing Director
(DIN: 09755388)

By Order of the Board

For IFCI Finaneial Services Limited

-Sd-

Sanjay Pote

Director

(DIN: 08085505 )
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF M/S TFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of M/S IFCI FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company™). which comprise the balance sheet as at 313 March 2023 and
the statement of Profit and Loss. statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements. including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “*Standalone Financial

Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standard preseribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March, 2023, and the /oss, total

Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.




Key Audit Matters

This Company is an unlisted public sector company (where the sharcholding of the entities owned
by the Government of India is more than 51%). We have been informed by the management that
the transactions of the Company are not: (a) significant as compared to the size of operations of
its Holding Company; (b) the transactions of the Company are not complex: and (¢) of such

nature to be of public interest. In view of the above, we are not mentioning any Key Audit Matters.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but

does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Standalone Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial

Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS)

specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in




preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the [inancial statement that give a true and fair

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to

liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal cantrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act. 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness

of such controls.




e Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriaieness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 10 events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report o the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or. if such
disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Standalone Financial Statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and

4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of
the books and records of the company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanation given to us, in “Annexure 2” on the directions issued by the

Comptroller and Auditors General of India.

3. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.




b)

d)

f)

In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears [rom our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive Income, the

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

We have been informed that the provisions of the section 164(2) of the Act in respect of the

disqualification of directors are not applicable to the Company. being a Government Company

in terms of notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) dated June 3, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate

Affairs. Government of India.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone

Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to

our separate Report in “Annexure 3”. Our Report expressed an unmodified opinion on the

adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone Financial Statements — Refer Note 29 of the Notes forming part of Standalone
Financial Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company have represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:




(b) The Board of Directors of the Company have represented. that. to the best of its knowledge
and belief. other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts. no funds have been received
by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™). with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entitics
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations made by the Board of Directors of the Company under sub-clause (a) and

(b) hereinabove contain any material misstatement.
V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

4. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors® Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act, in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions

of section 197 of the Act are not applicable as the Company is a Government Company.

For S. Venkatram & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 0046565/5200095

: | Yt
* \ Alwarpe, V- e

Chennai-18

R. Vaidyanathan

Place: Chennai Partner

Date: 12" May 2023 M.No. 018953
UDIN:2%0\8953B (18 TnE486



ANNEXURE “1” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT

REPORT ON THE COMPANY (AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2020 (“THE ORDER"),
UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION (11) OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 (the ACT)

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date to the members of 1FCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED on the Standalone

Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March 2023)

I In respect of Property. Plant and Equipment:
a)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including
quantitative details and situation of Property. Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars and details of
Intangible Assets.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals which. in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. y |

¢) According to the information and explanations 'é_iven to us, the Company does not own any
immovable properties. Therefore, the pl_‘D\;'iSiOIlS.Of‘SUTJ.C'[a.lISC (c) of clause (1) of Paragraph
3 of CARO 2020 are not applicable 2 S

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets or
both during the year.

e) As perexplanations provided to us, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against
the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988. Therefore. the provisions of sub clause (¢) of clause (i) of Paragraph 3 of CARO
2020 are not applicable.

il In respect of Inventories:

a) The Company is in the service industry and consequently do not hold any inventory.
Therefore, the provisions of sub clause (a) of clause (ii) of Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020 are
not applicable

The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore

rupees. in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current




iii.

iv.

.

1.

assets. Therefore. the provisions of sub clause (b) of clause (ii) of Paragraph 3 of CARO

2020 are not applicable.

The Company during the current year has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured. to companies. firms. Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore. the provisions of sub clause (a), (¢) to (f)
of clause (iii) of Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020 are not applicable. With regard to the investment
made by the Company. in our opinion and according to the intimation and explanations given to

us the said investments are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company,

In our opinion the Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act, with
respect to making investments. The Company has not given any loan or guarantee or provided

any security to any party covered under Section 185 of the Act.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposit from the public within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under, wherever applicable.

Therefore, the provisions of clause (v) of Paragraph 3 of the CARO 2020 are not applicable.
The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the services rendered by the Company. Therefore, the

provisions of clause (vi) of Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020 are not applicable.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of accounts, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance. Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues. Further, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the
aforesaid statutory dues in arrears as at 3 1% March 2023 for a period of more than six months.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the books of accounts
there are no dues of Income Tax or Sales Tax or Service Tax or Duty of Customs or Duty of
Excise or Value Added Tax or Goods and Services Tax that have not been deposited as on
31% March, 2023 with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except as stated

below:




SL | Name of the  Nature of Amounts Period to which |~ Forum where |
| No Statute Dues Involved the amount disputed is
(Rs.) relates pending
(Financial
- - 1 Year) |
1 3.94.229 2011-12 '
2 Income Tax | Income Tax 1,28.55.235 2012-13 | Commissioner
3 Act. 1961 5.64.346 2014-15 . of Income Tax
4| 5,22,985 2015-16 (Appeals)
5 12.97.843 2017-18
6 | Income Tax TDS 1,02,017 | Various years [ Demand as per
Act, 1961 i Traces
viil.  As per the explanations provided to us, there were no transactions which are not recorded in the

books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

i With respect of Repavment of loans and other borrowings:

a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

¢) The Company has not obtained any Term Loans.

d) Based on our examination of the books of the Company, no funds were raised on short
term basis which have been utilized for long term purposes.

e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries. joint ventures, or associate companies.

Therefore, the provisions of sub clause (a) to (f) of clause (ix) of Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020

are not applicable

X. With respect to Public Offers and allotment of shares:

a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of Initial Public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments).
b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares

orconvertible debentures (fully, partially, or optionally convertible) during the year.




Xi.

Xii.

X111,

Xiv.

XV.

XVIL

I'herefore. the provisions of sub clause (a) & (b) of clause () of Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020

are not applicable.

With respect 1o Fraud:

a) No matenal fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

b) There are no reports filed under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

¢) There were no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the Company.

Therefore. the provisions of sub clause (a) to (¢) of clause (xi) of Paragraph 3 of CARO

2020 are not applicable

[n our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, reporting under sub clause (a) to

(c) of clause (xii) of Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in Note 31 to the standalone financial statements as required by

the applicable accounting standards.

Since neither the paid up share capital is greater than rupees fifty crores during the previous
financial year nor the turnover is greater than rupees two hundred crores during previous financial
year nor outstanding loans/borrowings from banks/public financial institutions is greater or equal
to one hundred crore rupees at any time during the previous financial year nor outstanding
deposits is greater or equal to twenty five crore rupees at any time during the previous financial
year, the Company is not required have an internal audit system which commensurate with the
size and nature of its business. Therefore, reporting under sub clause (a) & (b) of clause (xiv) of

Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020 is not required.

The Company has not entered in any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected

with them. Therefore, reporting under clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020 is not required.

The Company is not a Non-Banking Finance Company; and is not required to register under
section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, the reporting of sub clause (a) to

(d) of clause (xvi) of Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020 are not applicable.




AN

XV

XX,

xxI.

The Company has incurred a cash lass ol Rs. 1.35.75.456 during the inancial year. However. the

Company has not incurred any cash losses during the immediately preceding financial year.

There has not been any change in Statutory Auditors during the vear. Therefore. reporting under

clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020 is not required.

On the basis of the financial ratios. ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nathing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its labilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We. however. state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet

date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Since the provisions of Section 135 of'the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company,
the reporting under sub clause (a) and (b) of clause (xx) of Paragraph 3 of the CARO 2020 arc
not applicable.

Since the Company is preparing consolidated financial statement, the reporting of clause (xxi) of
Paragraph 3 of the CARO 2020 are done in the independent auditors report on consolidated

financial statements.

For 8. Venkatram & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 0046565/5200095

’ G

R. Vaidyanathan

Place: Chennai Partner

Date: 12" May 2023 M.No. 018953

UDIN: 22013463808 J0 €843 b



ANNEXURE “2” to INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

REPORT ON THE DIRECTIONS ISSUED BY THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(Referred to in Paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our

report of even date to the members of IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED on the Standalone

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023)

to process all the accounting transactions

through IT system? If yes, the

implications of processing of accounting

transactions outside IT system on the

integrity of the accounts along with _"l'h"t':"
financial implications, if any, may be.

stated.

S.No. GENERAL DIRECTIONS AUDITOR’S COMMENT
L. Whether the company has system in place | The Company has a system in place to process

all the accounting transactions through its IT

systems with the support of accounting

software — LIDHA DIDHA (LD) and Tally

“accounting  software. The main activity is

[

raceounting for brokerage income earned from

clients trading in equities and derivatives which

é‘reiup_:g’i’_a‘iéa on a daily basis based on the trades

carried through the exchange with the support
of file / data shared by the exchanges. Inrespect
of payroll related data, based on the files
received from payroll department entries are
uploaded periodically / monthly in the
respective ledger accounts in the accounting
software. Other administrative and routine
entries are passed through the accounting
software  with  appropriate  menu-based
operations. Based on the verification carried out
by us during the course of our audit we have not
come across any discrepancies in processing of
accounting transactions outside the IT systems
which has a significant implications on the

integrity of accounts.




L]

Whether there is any restructuring of any |

existing loan or cases of waiver /write ofT
of debts / loans / interest. etc. made by a
lender to the company due to company’s
inability to repay the loan? I ves. the

financial impact may be stated.

As per the information and explanations given

to us the Company has not made any
borrowings where there was any restricting of

loans or waiver of loans.

Whether funds received / receivable for
specific schemes from Central / State
Government or its agencies were properly
accounted for / utilized as per its terms
and conditions?  List the cases of

deviation.

As per the information and explanations given
to us the Company has neither received any
funds nor is receivable for specific schemes

from Central / State Government or its agencies.

Place: Chennai

Alwarpet,
Chennai-18

Date: 12" May 2023

For S. Venkatram & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 0046565/S8200095

R. Vai

anathan
Partner
M.No. 018953
UDIN: 220\8963B6RI0EBL 86




ANNEXURE “3” to INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS with reference to STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUBSECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (*the Act™)

(Referred to Point fin Paragraph 3 under ‘Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date to the members of IFClI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED on the

Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2023.)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED as of 31* March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the

Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on the criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Controls over Financial Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act
and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance

Note”). to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone

Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical




internal Tnancial controls with reference 1o Standalone Financial Statements was established and

maintaimed and 1f such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit mvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness, Quraudit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
includes obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to Standalone

Financial Statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company.

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permitl preparation
of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company: and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial

Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial




material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any
cvaluation ol the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference 1o Standalone Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects. an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2023, based on the internal controls
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.

For S. Venkatram & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 0046565/8200095

Alwarpet, V- W y

Chennai-18 R. Vaidyanathar—

Place: Chennai Partner

Date:12" May 2023 M.No. 018953
UDIN: 2201895 36 SaE8u86




IFCI Financial Services Limited
Balance Slecet as at March 31, 2023

(AN amounts are in Indian Rupees, walvss otherwise siaied)

Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
1. Non-Current assets
ta) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 73,03,963 68,33.744
(b1 Other Intangible Assets 2 26,39,348 29.34,753
(c) Financial Assets
- Invesiments 4 36,14,54 063 3¥,52.23.063
- (Other Financial Assets 5 1,24,85912 11,92,08,972
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 6 3,77,29.808 4,03,15.631
Total Non-Current Assets 42,16,13,094 55,45,16,163
2. Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
- Investments 7 - 54.830
- Trade Receivables 8 1,77.64.647 40943512
- Cash and Cash equivalenis 9 824,24, 524 10,23,13,097
- Bank balances other than above o 17,69,31,303 8,70,19,081
- Oither Financial Assets 5 13,41,27 301 19,64,00,947
(b) Other Current Asseis 11 2.10,18.058 1,47,78,382
Total Current Assets 43,22,65,833 45,05,09,849
Total Asscts 85,38,78,927 1,00,50,26,012
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Equity Share Capital 12 41,53,37,090 41,53,37,050
(b) Other Equity 24.88,70,226 29,18,06.683
Total Equity 66,42.07,316 70,71,43,773
Liahilities
1. Non-Current Liabilitics
(a) Financial Liabilitics
- (ther Financial Liahility 13 37,14,166 39.43.726
(1) Provisions 16 72,17.823 65,07,738
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (nen) - o
Total Non-Curreat Linbilities 1,09,31,989 1,04,51,464
2. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
- Trade Payables 14
Total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dves of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 16.81.75,666 27,58,25.994
- Other Finaneial Liabilities 13 17,21,596 13,19,076
(b} Other Current Liabilities 15 82.66, 180 U5.76,817
(c) Provisions 16 5,76.180 7,08,887
Tatal Current Liabilities 17,87,39,622 28,74.30,774
Total Equity and Liabilitics §5,38,78,927 1,00,50,26,012

The Significant accomting policies amd Notes fo Accounts ure an integral part of these Sinancial statenenls

As per our attached Report of even duie
For 5. VENKATRAM & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No.0046565/ §

Y‘\{
R. Vaidyanhthan

Partner
M.No : 018953

1095

Plice : Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

IFCI Financial Services Limited
CIN: UT4899DL1993GO106:1034

S Karpagam
Muunging Direcror

Company Secretary
M.No : A51395

Place: Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023

DIN: oamW

.

Atul Saxena
Nowmiuee Direcior
DIN: 02698585




IFCI Financial Services Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AN amounts are tn fncdian Rupees, unless otherwise staied)

Notes March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Revenue from Operation 17 13,55,74,506 16,85,30.957
Other Income 18 2,38,05,652 4,01,34,981
Total Income 15,93,80,158 20,86,74,948
Expenses
Operational Expense 19 4.79.47,839 6,19,22 806
Employee Benefit Expenses 20 7,44,86,406 7,53,54,279
Finance Costs 21 51,480 9,67,038
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 22 16,52,564 9,66,773
Other Expenses 23 4,57,62,334 4,36,66,069
Impairment on Financial Instruments (including Bad Debits written off) 24 39,39.437 1,50,98,119
Impairment of Investment in Subsidiary Companies 4 2,37,69,000 -
Total Expenses 19,76,09,060 19,79,75,084
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item and Tax (3,82,28,902) 1,06,99,864
Profit/(Loss) before Income Tax Expense (3,82,28,902) 1,06,99,864
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax - -
Income Tax Expense - -
Profit{Loss) after Tax (3,82,28,902) 1,06,99,864
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) (47,07,555) 28,14,083
[ncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or lass -
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (47,07,555) 28,14,083
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss = =
Other Comprehensive Incame for the year, net of income tax expense (47,07,555) 28,14,083
Total Comprehensive Income (4.29,36,457) 1,35,13,947
Earnings per Share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in ) 25 (0.92) 0.26

The Significant accounting policies and Nores 1o Aceomis are an infegral part of these financial statements

As per our attacled Report of even dute
For S. VENKATRAM & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd No.0046565/ S200095

IFCI Financial Services Limited
CIN: UT4899DL1995G0O1064034

JSor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

w\j
\3 P@ge/

l§'anath:m S Karpagam’ *
i Munaging Director

DIN: 09755388

= | — &

Atul Saxena
Nowminee Director
DIN: (02698585

Chief Financial Officer

Comi) ny Sccretary
M.No : A51395

Place: Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023

Place : Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023



IFCI Financial Services Limited

Cash Mlow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless oftherwise stated)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash flow from operating activities
Met Profit / (Loss) before Tax (3,82,28,902) 1,06,99,864
Adjustinents for:-
[repreciation 16,52,564 9.66,773
|Finance Costs 51,480 9.67.038
Fair value change in [nvestment - (1.852)
Net Gain on Sale of Invesiments (2,092) =
Interest income (90,12,955) (85,19,732)
Impairment of Receivables 3939437 (37,84,135)
Impairment of Investment 2,37,69,000 -
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Liability (47,07,555) 28,14,083
Profit on Sale of Fixed assets - (1,12,493)
Loss on scrapped asset & “
Operating Cash Flow before Working Capital Changes (2,25,39,023) 30,29,547
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables 2,82,39,428 (90,51,783)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current Assets (62,39,676) (52,95,535)
Increase / {Decrease) in Trade Payable (10,76,50,328) 3,1691,974
Inerease / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (13,00,637) 66,098,902
Increase / (Deerease) in Provisions 577,378 (16,98,193)
(Iricrease) / Decrease in Financial Asset 7,01,81,372 (3,00,38,725)
Increase / (Decrease) in Financial Liability 1,72,960 (6,86,479)
Cash generated from Operating Activities (3,85,68,527) (54,39,293)
Income Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) (15,15,236) (19,66,935)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) (4,00,83,763) (74,06,228)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (18,27,377) (47,44.140)
Purchase of Intangible Assets - (15,56,840)
Sale of Fixed Assets - 1,15,791
(Inercase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits 003,111 69,02.719
Sale of Current Investment 56,922 ()]
Gratuity Fund Assel 41,01,059 (20,43,874)
Interest received 90,12,955 £5.19,732
Met Cash used in Investing Activitics (B) 2,02,46,670 71,93,387
Cash flow from Financing Activities
Receipt of short-term borrowings - 7,00,00,000
Repayment af shorl-term borrowings - (7,00,00,000)
Interest Expense (51,480 (2.67.038)
Net Casli from Financing Activities ) (51,480) (9.67,038)
Net Inerease/ (Deercase) in Cash and Cash Equivalenis (A+B+C) (1,98,88,573) (11,79.879)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,23,13,097 10,34,92.976
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 8,24,24,524 10,23,13.097
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as per the Cash Flow Statement
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 8,24,19,237 10,23,12,759
Cash on Hand 5,287 338

§,24.24.524 10,23,13,097

The Stgnificant accounting policies and Notes to Accounts are an infegral pari of these financial siatemenls

As per our attached Report of even dute
For S. VENKATRAM & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd No.0046565/ 8200095

o

R. Maidyanathan
Partner
M.No : 018953

Place : Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023

g™

IFCI Financial Services Limited
CIN: U74899DL1995G 01064034

Managing Director
DIN: 09755388

Company Secretary
M.No : AS1395

Place: Chennal
Date: May 12, 2023

. —

S Karpagam

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

e

Atul Saxena
Nominee Director
DIN: 02698585

A ¥V Pushparaj
Chief Financial Officer
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IFCI Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

A

a)

Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity
IFCI Financial Services Limited (IFIN) was incorporated on June 04, 1995, by IFCI Ltd.,to provide a wide range of financial products and services to

investors, institutional and retail. IFIN is primarily involved in Stock Broking, Investment Banking, Mutual Fund Distribution & Advisory Services,
Depository Participant Services, Insurance Products Distribution and the like. The Company is a SEBI registered Stock Broker of National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd (NSE), Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and Multi Commodity Stock Exchange (MCX-SX) and a Depository Participant with
National Securitics Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) and is primarily engaged in the busincss of

providing securities market related transaction services. The Company is also a registered Merchant Banker Category |

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adapted in the preparation of the financial statements, These policics have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

(i) Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been prepared by the Company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules of the C ompanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015,

For periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company presented its financial statements on accrual basis under historical cost
convention, and conform in all material aspects to the Generally Accepted Accounting Prineiples in India ('Indian GAAP' or 'previous GAAD') which
encompasses applicable accounting standards relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 .

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are the fifth financial statements of the Company prepared under Ind AS and the date of
transition to the Ind AS was April 1,2017,

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Dircctors on May 12, 2023,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with historical cost basis, exeept for certain financial instruments which are measvred at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies.

(ii) Functional and Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (2), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. All amounts are rounded
off to the nearest two decimal, except when otherwise indicated.

(iii) Use of Estimates and Judgment

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management o make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These
estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made
as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements
in the periad in which changes are made and, if material. their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively,

(iv) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, which are subjeet to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(v) Measurement of Fair Values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets

and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either direetly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
{i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses obscrvable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the
fair value of an agset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the samne level of the fuir value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.







1FCI Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, wnless otherwise stated)

b) Financial Instruments
(i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value except for trade receivables that do not contain a siguificant financing
component, which are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liahilities at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriale, on initial recognition.

(ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Financial Asseis

Ou initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at

- Amortised Cost;

-FVOCI; or

-FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative
financial assels. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements 10 be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise atise.

Financial Asseis: Subsequent measuremeit and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

FVOCI These assefs are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in 0OCI and are not reclassified 1o
profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities: Clussification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilitics are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is elassified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit or

Loss. Any gain or [oss on derccognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when :

— the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, of

— the company (ransfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are wransferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derccognised.

Financial Liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modificd terms are substantially
different. Tn this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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¢)

d)

€)

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the Liability
simultaneously.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost in the financial statements and the same are tested for impairment

in case of any indication of impairment.

Other Investments:
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 (i.e. other than equity investments in subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures) are measured at FVTPL.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in profit and loss account. However on initial recognition of an
equity instrument that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI This election is
made on an investment by investment basis,

Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost (cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related 1o acquisition
including applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets) and is net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, il any.

Cost of an item of properly, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any dircctly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company.

(iii) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using
straight-line method and is generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Residual value in respect of assets is considered as 5% of the cost for computing depreciation.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Useful life (in years)
Computer equipment's and accessorics 3
Servers 6
Office equipment's : 3
Motor Vehicles 10
Furniture and fittings 10

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the month in which asset is disposed of.

(iv) Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of assel. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other Intangible Assets
(i) Recognition and Measurement
Other infangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangibles are subsequently measured at cost less sccumulated amortisation and any

accumulated impairment losses.

(if) Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure on internally generated intangibles is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
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{iii) Amortization
Amortisation is caleulated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is included in
depreciation and amortisation in Statement of Profit and Loss,

The estimated uscful lives are as follows:

Assets Useful life (in years)
Computer Software 6
Non compete fees 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Impairment

(i) Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVOCL At each reporting
date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit - impaired® when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Impairment loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls). The Company estimates cash {lows by considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do not contain a significant
financing component. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime impairment pattern at cach balance sheet date, right from its initial recognition.

Loss allowances for financial nssets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount
of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Company determines that the debtor docs not have assels or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activitics in order to comply with the
Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(ii) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. I any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or Cash Generating
Unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company’s non-financial assets and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate
independent cash inflows are grouped together inta CGUs. Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated to reduce the carrying
amounts of the assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any
indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Employee Benefits

(i) Short-term Employce Benefits

Shart-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Provident Fund

Employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the Company make monthly
contributions to the Regional Provident Fund equal to a specitied percentage of the covered employee’s salary. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service, The Company has no further obligations under
the plan beyond its monthly contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the
respective funds are due and there are no other obligations other than the contribution payable.

(iii) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, a defined benefit retirement plan (the Plan} covering all
employees. The plan, subject to the provisions of the above Act, provides a lump sum payment to eligible employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The gratuity
Scheme is operated through Group gratuity Scheme of LIC. Gratuity liability is accrued and provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial period. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial
gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCL

%
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h)

k)

(iv) Compensated Absences

The policy provides for that an employee is entitled to 24 days of eamed leave per year and maximum of 30 days leave subject to availability of
Annual Leave standing to the credit of the employee at any time during the year will be paid as leave salary calculated on the Gross component. The
expenses on account thus arising are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Provision for long-term compensated absences is acerued and provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial period.
The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method. Short-term encashment of accumulated leave balances are accounted for in the
year in which the leave balances are credited to employees on actual basis.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits) and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obli gation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present ebligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, due to occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or
more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the Company, or where any present obligation cannot be measured in lerms of future
outfow of resources, or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made, Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those
having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

Revenue Recognition

(i) Brokerage Income is recognized on the trade date of the transaction upon confirmation of the transactions by the exchanges.

(ii) Loan Syndication Fees are recognised when the right to receive the income is established.

(iii) Depository Services incomes are recognised on the basis of agreements entered into with clients and when the right to receive the income is

established.
(iv) Insurance Commission from Agency business is booked upon actual receipt of commission from the principal.

{v) Commission from selling of mutual funds is accounted on receipt basis.

(vi) Recovery from bad debts written off is recognised as income on the basis of actual realisation from customers.

(vii) Dividends declared by the respective Companies till the close of the accounting period are accounted for as income when the right to receive the
dividend is established.

(viii) Interest income from financial assets is recognised on a time proportion basis taking inlo account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

(ix) All other income are recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realization/ collection.

Leases

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 (as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 30th March 2019) that is effective for annual periods that
begin on or after 01st April 2019. Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ replaces Ind AS 17 *Leases. The new Standard has been applied by the Company using the
modified refrospective approach, with the cumulative effect of adopting Ind AS 116 being recognized in equity as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings for (he current period. Prior periods have not been restated.

All leases are accounted for by recognizing a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for
a. Leases of Jow value assets; and
b. Leases with a duration of 12 months or less

Lcase liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate determined
by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily determinable, in which case the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used

The right-of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direet eosts incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

Tncome Tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business

combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(i) Current Tax

Current fax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years, The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the

reporting date.

Current tax asseis and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
f. %
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m}

mn)

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
caombination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transactiorn.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not le available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised,
are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ ne longer probable respectively that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of ifs assets and liabilitics.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets. and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend fo settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Earnings per Share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- the profit atfributable to owners of the Company

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, excluding treasury shares

(it) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

_ the afier income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

- the weighled average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity

shares.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash on hand and at banks including short-term deposils with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject o an insignificant risk of changes in value. Other bank deposits which are not in the nature of cash and cash equivalents with a
maturity period of more than three months are classified as bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents

Other bank deposits which are not in the nature of cash and cash equivalents with a maturity period of more than three months are classified as bank

balances other than cash and cash equivalents.
Fixed Deposits with amaturity period of more than 12 Months are classified under Other financial asset (Non current)
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3 Other Intangible Assets

Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

Computer Others - Non .
Software compete fees Total
Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at April [, 2021 3,29,31,175 1,00,00,000 4,2931,175
Additions 15,56,840 - 15,536,840
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,44,88,015 1,00,00,000 4,44,88,015
Additions = . =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3.44,88,015 1,00,00,000 4,44,88,015
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment Losses
Balanee as at April 1, 2021 3,14,45.393 1,00,00,000 4,14,45,393
Amortisation tor the year 1,007 868 - 1,07 868
Balance as at March 31,2022 3,15,53,262 1,00,00,000 4,15,53,262
Amortisation for the ycar 2.95,405 - 2,85 405
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3,18,48,667 1,00,00,000 4,18,48,667
Carrying Amounts (net)
As at March 31, 2023 26,39,348 - 26,39,348
As at Mareh 31, 2022 29,34,753 - 29,34,753
4 Investment - Non-Current
As at As at
Units March 31, 2023 Units March 31, 2022
Investment measured at cost
In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies
Unquoted, fully paid up
IFIN Commodities Limited (Face Value ¥ 10/-) 50,00,000 5,00,00,000 50,00,000 5,00,00,000
IFIN Credit Limited (Face Value T 10/-) 25,00,000 2,79,00,000 25.00,000 2,79,00,000
IFIN Securities Finance Limited (Face Value 2 [00/-) 30,01,000 30,73,23,063 30,01,000 30,73,23,063
Less: Allowance for Impairment™® (2,37,69,000) -

Total

38.52,23.063

* During the year ended 31st March 2023 the Company has reviewed the tesi of impairment for investment in Subsidiary Companies and
accordingly created an allowance for Impairment in respeci of IFIN Commodities Limited amounting to T1.5 7,214,000/~ and IFIN Credit Limted

amounting to T 80,458,000/,
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Asal Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
5 Other Financial Assets
Security Deposits 13.77.12.301 20,78.93,673
Bank deposit accounts (more tan 12 months maluity} 4872412 10,36,87, 745
Rent advances Al,28,500 40,258,500
14.66.13.213 315609918
Current ® [ 341,27,301 19,6400 5947
Mon-Current** 1,2485512 11,92,08972

* Deparit amowniing to & 13,40 30073 (Previows vear - 15,1718 1730 represenis marein mopey maintained with Exchange

** Non-Curvent deposit includes ffvod doposits aggregaring o 48,7241 (Previous Year - ¥ 10.36.87.745) against which lien has becn marked by the banks for mecting the margin and base
wininu capital requivements with NSE & BSE for trading in various parifolios,

6 Other Non-Current Assets
Balance with IT Authorities 39729808 36214572

Fair Value of Plan Asset - Gratuity fund 41,01,05%
3.77.29.508 4.03,15631
7 Investment - Current
Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
= In Equity Instrument - -
- In Mutual Funds* - 50,509
o 50,509
Less:
Inerease/Decrease in Fair Value - 4,321
Total of Investments measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss o] 54,830
* livesteiens in Aditvve Sirla Sy Life Liguid Fund, NIL (Frevions year (59,795 Units) of Face Falue & 100/~
8 Trade Receivablos
Considered Good Seeurcd 7 =
Considered Good Unsecured 1.77.64,647 49943.512
Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 67242637 %,33,03,200
Credit lmepaired - -
Less:
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss [6,7242,637) 16,33,03,200)
Net Trade Recelvables 1.77,64,647 4,89.43,512

The Company's exposure 1o credit and curveney risks, and loss allovance related 1 irade receivables are disclosed in Note 27

Trade Receivables ageing schedule

1 = Quislamn for Tollowin riods from duc date of pavment as at 31st March 2023:
Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months-1 Year 1-2 Year 2.3 Year Maore than 3 year Tuotul
(i) Undisputed Trade ivables - Considered good 1,77.36.095 5273 14,534 - 3.740 1.77.64.647
{ii) Undisputed Trade Reeeivables - Which have 9,00.220 13.58,753 3367385 115,133 1.6A.43,163 2.24.80,657

significant increased in credir risk

(i) Undisputed Trade Reevivables - Credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables -considered pood - = = = . .
(viDisputed Trade Receivables -which have significant - - - 447,355,981 44755981
inereased in credit risk

(vi)Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired = = = = = 3
Total 1.86.36.315 13,64.032 EEE IR E 215133 14,09 885 2.50,07.284 31
Less: Loss Allowance [6.7242,637)
Net Trade Receivables 1,77,64,647
8.2 - Outstanding for following perinds from due date of pavinent as at 315t Mareh 2022:
Farticulars Less than 6 months | 6 months-1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered good 4,66,85,579 31,109,193 - - 1,358,740 40643512
{i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Which have 3,45936 TARITO £,32,900 428,605 1,63,91,6049 1,85,47,220
significant increased in credit risk

(i1i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables -considerad geod - - - - <
(v)Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant - B - - 44755981 44755981
inereased in eredit risk

(vi)Disputed Trade Receivables - Crodit impaired - - - . = :
Total 47031515 38.67,362 6,32,500 4,268,005 6,12.86,329 11.3246,711.83
Less: Loss Allowance (6.33.03.200)
Net Trade Reeeivables 4.99.43.512
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Asat Asat
23 March 31, 202
9 Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with hanks in current accounts £.24.19.237 10,23,12,759
Cash on Hand 5,287 338
RS 102010097
10 Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents
Bank deposit accounts (more than 3 months but less thin 12 months matunty) * 17,69,31,303 84519081
= 25,00,000

Balances with banks held as mergin money

17,69.31.303 8,70,19.081

* Bauk deposit occounts includes fived deposiis with barks aggregating to 7 15,6304, 4590 quainst which lien has been morked by the banks fir meeting the margin and base mintmum capital

requivements with SHCIL, NSCCL, NCL, MSEIL & NSE far mrading i various portjolios.

11 Other Current Assets

Interest geerued on Deposits 1.13.20.398 6400145
Prepaid Expenses 55,70,934 6l 69,054
Ealance with Revenue Authorities 12,21,669 17,99,683
FEmployee Advances 236,100 509,500
Other Advances® 26.62.957 -
210,108,058 1,47,78.382

* Other advances inclides a sum of Re. 25,00,000- paid to NSE which witl e wieved it Security deposits wnder note 5 Otiver Financial Assets upon cnffrmarion of deposit.
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IFCI Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

13 Other Financial Liabilities

Security deposits collected 37.14.1606 39,43,726
Employee Related payables 17,21,596 13,19,076
54,315,762 52,62,802

Sccurity deposits

Non-Current 37.14,166 30.43.726
Current 17,21,596 13.19,076
54,35.762 52,62,802

The Company's exposure ro currency and liguidite risks related to the above financial liahilities is disclosed in Note 27,

14 Trade and Other Payables

Other Trade Payables 16.81,75,666 29,58,25,994

16,81,75.666 27,58,25,994

All trade payables are *Current’.
The Company's exposure to cirvency and liguidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Noie 27,

Trade Payables ageing

14.1 - Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at 31st March 2023

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total
MSME 5 : - % :
Others 15,92,14,503 26,211,440 36,80.817 26,586,906 16.81.75.666
Disputed dues - MSMEE - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - E - -

ceriods from due date of payment as at 31st March 2022
ear 73 Year More than 3 year Total

14.2 - Ouistanding for followin
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-

MSME - F S =

Others 26,59,73,528 21,59,071 16,48, 718 60,44,677 27,58,25,994

Disputed dues - MSME - .

Disputed dues - Others - 2 .

15 Other Current Liabilities

Statutory Dues payable 35.50,422 37.82,703
Expenses Payable * 55,08 941 57,19,275
Other liabilities 206,817 74,839

82,606,180 95,76.817

*Expenses payable include expenses towards office maintenajice, commission pavable to sub brokers and provision for litigation losscs.

16 Provisions

Provisions for Employee Benefits
- Compensated Absences 77.14,416 72.16,625
- Gratuity 79,587 -
Provisions for Taxation
Provision for Income tax 2022-23

77,94,003 72.16,625

Non-Current 72,17,823 65,07,738
Current 5,76,180 7.08,887
77.94,003 72,16,625

For details abourt the related emplavee benefit expenses. see Note 20.




IFCI Financirl Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

17

18

20

21

22

Revenue from Operation

Brokerage On Stock Broking
Commission On Mutual Fund
Depository Income

Merchant Banking & Valuation Fees
Aceount Opening Charges

Commission from Insurance Companies
Commission From ISFL Sharing

Other Opcrational Income
Delayed Payment Interest

Other Income

Interest Income

Miscellaneous Income

Recovery of Deposits written off

Deputation Income

Rental Income

Profit on Sale of Investments

Profit on Sale of Fixed asscts

Net gain on fair value changes

Reversal of impairment provision on receivable

Operational Expense
Commission Paid
Information Technology Exp
Data Feed Charges

Fees To Clearing Member
DP Expenses

Membership Fee

Broking Stamp Expenses

Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contribution ta Provident Fund and Other Funds
Gratuity

Stafl Welfare Expense

Finance costs

Bank Guarantee Commission Expense

Bank Charges
[nterest on Loan

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortisation of Intangible Assets

Period from
April 01, 2022 to
March 31, 2023

Period from
April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2022

10,68,55,958 12,99,39.847
1.06,11,249 1.95,37,741
80,50,535 1,07.48,931
32,78.000 11,75,000
1,26,600 1,84.350
99,144 191,065
= 36,654
12,90.21,486 16,18,13,588
5,53,020 67,26,380
13,55,74,506 16,85,39,967
90,12,955 85.19,732
87,60,364 78,99,274
27,00,000 1
26,00,875 27,73,180
7,29.365 19.46,196
2,192 .
- 1,12,493
5 1.852
g | .88,82.254
2,38,05,652 4,01,34,981
3,04,13,007 52132347
30,76,422 36,75,803
2232897 20,59,681
6,52,696 17,18,036
9,64,458 11,94,763
12,63,330 10,844,575
3,45,028 57,600
4,79,47,839 6.19,22,806
6,68,52,058 6.76.91,131
39,98,504 4343352
6,18,398 11,27,057
30,17.446 21,92,739
7,44.86.406 7,53,54,279
; 8,84.079
28,466 28,302
23.014 54,657
51,480 9,67,038
13.57,159 8,58,905
295,405 1,07,868
16,52,564 9.66,773




IFCI Financial Services Limited
Notes to the finaneial statements

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwive stated)

23 Other Expenses

24

Period from
April 01, 2022 to
March 31, 2023

Perlod from
April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2022

Rent 1,72,61,220 1,79,79,329
Office Maintenance 54,12,355 53,86,760
Electricity Charges 38,65,595 33,02,618
Telephone Expenses 37,001,602 33,51,584
Professional Charges 3228441 35,78,798
Annual Maintenance Charges 32,13,481 41,03,328
Insurance Expenscs 23,39.556 12,45,540
Fines and Penalties 13,93,922 -
Audit Fees 10,77,500 11,05,000
Travelling & Conveyance Exp 9,153,261 6,59,058
Printing & Stationery 8,658,304 8,42,808
Training Expenscs 5,354,220 1,20,396
Other Administrative Expenses 444,654 5,106,280
Sitting Fezs 4,14,000 3,84,000
Litigation Losses 3,22,781 -
Postage & Telegram 2,88,672 477,614
Repairs & Maintenance 2.59.647 4,19,115
Rates & Taxes 1,12,293 1,54,498
Advertisement 68,831 19,337
4,57,62,334 4,36,66,069
Payments to Auditors
As Auditor:-
Statutory Audit Fee 6,00,000 6,00,000
Fees for Limited review (Standalone & Consolidtion) 3,15,000 3,15,000
Tax Audit 55,000 55,000
Other Service 1,07,500 1,35,000
10,77,500 11.05,000
Impairment on financial instrument
Bad debts written off - 1,50,98,119
Provision for Impairment on Trade receivable 39,359,437 -
39,39,437 1.50.98,119

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per sharc based on profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of

cquity shares outstanding arc as follows:

i. Prafit attributable ta equity shareholders (basic and dilnied)

Profit for the year, attributable to the equity holders (3,82,28,902)

ii, Weighted average mmiber of equity shares (basic and diluted)

1,06,99.864

Opening balance 4,15,33,709 4.15,33,709
Additional shares issued during the year

Weighted average number of equity shares for the year 4,15,33,709 4,15,33,709
Basic and Diluted EPS (0.92) 0.26




[FCI Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(Al amovints are in Indian Rupees, wnless atherwise stated)

26 Employee Benefit Exprnses

Defined Contribution Plan

The company has recogiused an expense of 2 38,4 1,065/ (Previous year T 41,67,991/4) towards provident fund, 2 1.57.439f (Previous year T 1,75,3611-) towards other welfare
funds

(i

(i) Defined Bengfit Plan - Compensated Absence
The Campany has recognised an cxpense of 2 46,20.477 /- during the year ended Mareh 31, 2023 (Previous year T 10,06,882/-) as per actuartal valualion report, The Closing
Balance of compensated absence as at March 312023 is T 7714416 /- (Previous year 2 T216,6250-).

(11)  Defivied Benefit Plan - Gratuity
The Company has constituted The Employces Group Gratuity Fund under the Group Gratuity A ¢ Scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corperation of India. The
scheme prevides for Lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount cquivalent to 15 days
salary payable for cach year of completed service or part thereof in excess of 6 months. Vesting occurs on caompletion of § years of service.

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as langevity risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

A Reconciliation of Amounts in Balance Sheet
For the period from For the period from

April 01,2022 to April 01, 2021 to

March 31, 2023 March 3, 2022
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of period 1,29,73,363 94,596,052
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of period 1,28,93,776 13557, 111
Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit at the end of period 79,587 (41,01,059)
Liability/{ Assct) recognised in the Balanee Sheet 79,587 (41,01,059)

B Reconciliation of the present value of Defined Benefit Obligation and Fair value of Plan Assets

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances 1o the closing balances for the present value of Defined Benefit Obligation and Fair value of Plan Assets
and ils componcnls,

Reconcilfuri
Ior the period from  For the perivd from

April 01, 2022 to April 01, 2021 10

Mareh 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Diefined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of period 94,96,052 1,15,08,541
Benelis Paid (25,71,383) (11.12,346)
Current Service Cost 919,826 12,770,031
Interest Cost 6,73,290 7.87.371
Actuarial (gains}losses recognised in other comprehensive income 44,55,578 (29,67.545)
Talance at the end of the year 1,29,73,363 94,96,052
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of period 1,29,73,363 94,96,052

Recanciliation of fate valiee of Plan Asser

For the period from  For the period from

Aprilol, 2022 ta April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fair value of Plan Assets at ihe beginning of period 13597111 1.35,65,726
Interest Income 974117 940,345
Actual Enterprize’s Contribution 11,45307 3,560,848
Actual Benefits Paid 25,71,383) (11,12,346)
Actuarial gainsi|osses) recogmised in other comprehensive income (2,51.976) (1.53,462)
Balance at the end of the year 1,18,93.776 1,3397,L11
Fair valuc of Plan Asscts af the cnd of perind 1,28,93,776 1,35,97,111
C i Expense recognised in Profit or Loss

Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Currerit Service Cost 9,19,826 1270031
Interest Cost 6,73,260 197371
Expectzd Return on Plun Assets (9,74,717) (4,40,345)

618,109 11,27,057

if. Remeasurements recogiised in other comprehiensive iicome

March 21, 1023 March 31, 2022
Amount recogmized in OCT at the beginning of period (41,32,070) (13,17,987)
Actuarial loss {gain)/loss on Detined Benetit Obligatian 44,55 578 {29.67,345)
Actuarial loss gainf{loss) on Plan asset (2.51,976) [1.53462)

5.75,484 {41,32,070)
0 Defined Benefit Obligation

Actuarial assuniptions
Principal actuarial assumptions ot the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discounl rate 7.20% 7.35%

0% for next year and

Salary Escalation
3.00% 3.00% therealter




IFCI Financial Services Limited
Nates tn the financial statements
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27 Finuncial instruments - Fair values and risk management

A Accounting classifications and fair values
The following table shows the camying amounts and fair values of finaneial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels n fair value hierarchy

Mareh 31, 2023

Amortised Cost FVTPL Fvact Total carrying amount
Financial assets
Trade Receivables 1,77.64,647 - - 1.77.64,647
Cash and Cash equivalents 82324524 - - 8,24 34 524
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents 17.64.31,303 17.69,31,303
Other Financial Assels 14.66,13,213 - - 14,66.13,213
Inwvestments (other than investment in Subsidiary) < = = i
Total Financial assels 42,37,33,687 - - 42,37,33,687
Finaneial linbilitics
Trade and Other Payables 16,81.75.666 - - 16.81,75 666
Other Financial Liabilities 54,35, 762 - - 54.35,762
Total Financial liabilities 17.36,11,428 - - 17.26,11 428
March 31, 2022

Amortised Cost FVTPL FVOCI Total carrying amount
Financial assets
Trade Receivables 499,431,512 - - 449943512
Cash and Cash eguivalents 10.23,13.007 - - 10.23,13,007
Rank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents B,70,19,081 8,70,19,081
Other Financial Asscls 31.56,09,918 - - 30.56,09918
Investments {other than investment in Subsidiury) - 54,830 - 54,830
Total Financial asscts S5 48,585,608 54,830 - 55,44,40,438
Financial liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 27,58,25,994 - - 27,55,25.994
Other Financial Liabilitics 32,62,807 & - 52,622,802
Total Financial ligbilides 28,10.88,7% - - 18,10,88,796

- The fair valuc of investment (other than in subsidiary) is determined based on Level-1 input i.¢ the price quoted in active market.
- For all of the Company’s assets and liohilities which are not carried at fair valuz, disclosure of fair value is not required a3 the enrying amounts approximates the fair values.

B Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the fellowing risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk (see (B)(ID);
- Liquidity risk (see (B)(iii)), and
- Market risk (see (B)(iv)).
i. Risk management framework
The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establist amud ight of the Company's visk framewaork. The board of directors along
with the rop management are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

The Company's tisk o policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 0 set appropriate risk limits and controls and to momitor nisks
and adherence to limits, Risk manogement policies and systems are reviewed regularly 1o refleet changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company,
through its training and t dards and procedures, aims to maintain o diseiplined and construetive control environment in which all employees understand their roles

and obligations,

The Company's Board of Directors oversees how management monitors complianee with the Cempany's risk management policies and precedures. and reviews the adequacy of
the risk management framework in relation 1o the visks faced by the Company.

i, Credit risk

Credit tisk refer ta the risk of defoult on its abligation by the counter party resulting in financial loss. Credit risk always managed by the Company by proper appravals.
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial asscts recogmised ut the end of the reporting period, as summuarised below:

Carrying amount Carrying amount
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trnde Receivables 1,77,64.647 4,99 431512
Other Financial Assels 14,66,13.213 31,56,09,918
16,43,77,861 36.55.53,430

Credit risk on cash and eash equivalenis is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks with high eredit ratings assigned by the eredit rating agencies,
lovestments pomarily include investment in liguid mutual fund units,
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Notes to the financial statements
(AN wmaonnts are in fndian Rupees, wnless otheriise siated)

Trade Receivables

The Campany applies expected eredit loss (ECL) medel for measuremen and recognition of loss allowance for Trade receivables. i follows i simplified approach whercin an
amount equal o lifetime ECL s measured and recognised as loss allowance. Lifetime ECL are the experied credil losses resulling from all possible defaull events over the
expected life of a financial asset, ECL ure measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probabiliy weighted amounts determined by a range of outcomes, taking into
account the time value of money and other reusanable information available as a result of past events, cument conditions and Forecasts of fulure economic canilitions.

As a practical expedient. the Company uses a provision matrix te measure lifetime FCL on its portfolio of trade receivables. The provision mawix is preparcd based on
historically abserved default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is atjusted for forward-looking estimates. Al each reporting date, the histarically observed
default rates and changes w the forward-looking estimates are updated. ECL allowanee recognised (or reversed) during the period is recognised as income’ expense in the
statement of profic and loss. The movement of Allowance for Expected Credit Loss are provided herein under:-

Recancifiation ef Allowance for Expected Credin Loss:- March 31, 2023 Marzch 31, 2022
Opening Balance £,33,03 200 82185454
Created / (Reversed) during the year 3939437 -1,88,82.254
Closing Balance 6,72.42.637 6,33,03,200

Other Financial Asseis
This balance 1s primarily constited by deposit given to Stock exchange in relation to maintai i base capital requi The Company does not expect any losses from
non-performunce by these counter-parties,

ift. Liguidity rvisk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will bave sufficient liquidity 1o meet its liabilities when they are due, vnder
Both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company ‘s reputation.

The Company’s principal sources of liguidity are cosh and eash equivalents, the cash flow that is generated fram operations. The Company helieves that the working capital is
sulficient to meet its current requirements, Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

h and Cash

As of March 31, 2023, the Company had s working cupital of T 25,35 26,21 - ineluding cash and bank balances of 2 8,24.24,524/ und Bunk balanees other than Cy
eyuivalents of £ 17,69.31,303/-. Further the promater of the Company have also committed t support the company for their current snd future requirements.

The following are the remaining contractual mituritics of fnancial liabilities al the reparting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contsciual interest
payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements,

Mareh 31, 2023

Carrying amount Contractual eash flows
Total upto 1 year muore than 1 vear
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 16.81.75,6608 16.81,75.666 16,81,75,660 v
Other financial liabilitics 54.35.762 54,315,762 - 5435762
17,36.11.428 17.36,11,428 16.81,75,0006 54.35,762
March 31, 2022
Carrying amount Contractual cash Nows
Total uplo 1 year more (han 1 year
Financial linbilitics
Trade Payables 27.58,25,994 27.58,25,994 27,58.25994 -
Other financial liabilities 52,62,802 52,62,502 - 52.62 502
28,11,88,796 28,10,88,796 27,58,25,994 51,62,802

iv. Marke: risk
Market risk is the visk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchiange rates, interest rates and cquity prices, will affect the Company's income or the value ol its Lioldings
of financial instruments. The ohjective of market risk management is to manage and control markel risk exposures within acceptable patameters, while aptimising the return,

€ Capital management
For the purposc of the Cowmpany’s capital managemen, capital inchudes issued cquity eapital, share premium and all olbyr equity reserves attributable 1o the equity holders of the
company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the sharcholder value, The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to
maintain investor, creditor and market conlidence and 1o sustain future development of the business, It sets the amaunt of capital required on the basis of annual business and
long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments. The funding requirements are met through supperi from the Holding Company. The Company
maonitors capilal using a ratio of net debt to equity. For this purpese, net debt is defined as total lishilities, comprising interest-beariug loans and barrowings, tade payable,
financial linbilitics and other liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all camponents of equity.
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28 Income Taxes (IND AS 12):

Deferred Tax Asset /(Liahility) as on March 31, 2023 has been armived ar as follows

Timing Difference on account of Disallowances
Tuming Difference on aceount of Carry Forward Losses

A
Less: Deferred Tax Liability arising on account of
Timing Difference on account of Disallowances
Timing Difference on account of Depreciation

B
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Linbility) (A+B)

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
41,28,773 939,247
1,03,84,275 73.81,762
1,45,13,048 83.21,010

(8,52 484) (4.91,511)

(8,52,484) (4,91,511)
1,36,60,564 78,29,499

According to IND AS-12, Deferred Tax Asset should be recognized only when there 1s o reasonable certainty supported by convineing evidence that sufficient future taxable incomne will be available. In

view of prudence, the Company has not recognized Deferred Tax Asset.

29 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities

a. Corporate Guarantees (Note (1))

b, Claims against the Company net acknowledged as debts
¢. TDS demand outstanding with TRACES (Note (i1}

d. Disputed Income tax demand® (Note (1i1))

Note

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
- 3,00,00,000
2,39.35,000 1,35,78,000
1Lozm7 1,19.453
1,56,34,638 1,56,34,638
3,96,71,655 5,93.32,091

{4} The company during the previous year ended March 31, 2022 provided a corporate guaranice af Rs. 5,00,00,000. (sanetioned lmit as at the Balance Sheet date is Rs. 3,00,00,000 <) to HDFC Bank

Limited with vespect fo bank guarantees provided by them 1o the exclanges on behalf of its wholly owned subsidiary Ms. IFIN Commodities Limited.

(1) The company has the follawing FOS Demand outstanding with TRACES as at March 31, 2023

Financial Year Amuount

2022- 2023 6,355

2027 -2022 468

2020 - 2021 192

2k - M 84

Frive Years 94,779

1,062,007

(18] The compaiy has the follonwag Dispted Incone tax demand as ot Mareh 31, 2023

S.No Assessment year Forum where appeal is pending Amanint of d /
! 2001-12 Comnissioner of Income 1ax (Appeals) 394,229
2 M2-13 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 128552335
3 2044-15 Camnissioner of Incoine Tax (Appeals) 3.64,346
+ 2043-16 Commissioner of Income Tee (Appeals) 5,22,985
5 200718 Comuiissioner of Income Tix (Appeals) 12,97,843
1,36,34,638

* The company is in the process of reconciling the amowt of ticome-tax demand entsionding with ihe provisions of iax held in books.

30 Segment Reporting

The company operates only i India, and only in one segment ie. stock broking and hence there are no reportable segments as defined in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS -108) on “Segment

Reporting The entire revenue earmed by the company is through the aforesaid services

31 Related parties
A Details of related parties and the velationships

Name of the party
IFCT Limited

Deseription of relutionship
- Holding Company

a) IFIN Commodities Limited
b) IFIN Credit Limited

- Subsidiary Company

¢} IFIN Securities Finance Limited (Formerly known as Marayan Sriram Investments Private Limited)

a) IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited

b) IFCI Factors Limited

¢) IFCI Infrastructure Development limited

d} Sioek Holding Corporation of India Limited

- Fellow Subsidiary Company

Mrs, Karpagam (w.e.f October 03, 2022)

Mr. Karra Visweswar Rao {Cessation w e.f October 03, 2022)
Mr. Ramesh N.G.S (w.e.l May 23, 2019)

Mr. Jayesh Amichand Shah (w.e.f November 07, 2020}

Mr. Rajesh Kumar (w.e f November 07, 2020)

Mr. Alan Savio Pacheco (w.e.f March 12, 2021)

Mr. Atal Saxena (w.e.f May 19, 2022)

Mr. AW Pushparaj

Ms. Pragyan Shree (w.o.f November 02, 2021)

- Key management personnel

Managmg Director
Managing Director
Meon-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
MNon-Executive Director
Nominee Director
Nominee Director

Chief Financial Officer (CFQ)

Company Secretary (CS)

&



IFC1 Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(Al aamornts are in tndian Rupees, unless otherwise staivd)
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Transactions with key management personnel

L Key Management Personnel Compensution

Period ended

Peried ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Short-term benefits
- Mr. A,V Pushparaj 11,152,173 10,68,023
- Mr. Aby Eapen - 2,36,484
- s, Pragyan Shree 7,856,712 2,68 855
18,98,885 15,73,362
Surng fees paid to Directors
- Mr Jayesh Amichand Shah 1,892,000 1,92,000
- Mr. Rajesh Kumar 2,22.000 1,92,000
4,14,000 3,584,000
Related party transactions other than those with Key Management Personnel
Name of Related party Nature of Relationship Nature of Transactions March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Reimbursement of Expenses received - Rent, Software AMC &
Emplovee Cost 1242023 26,28 896
Corporate Guarantee Limit given - HDFC Bank for Credit Facility
- 3,00,00,000
IFIN Commaodities Lid Subsidiary Company : ;
Reimbursement of Festival advance Paid
- 18,000
PM Care Fund - Covid 19 Contribution = -
Incentive paid (35,000) (71,286)
Salary deputation paid (22,10,573) (23,40,246)
Rennbursement of Expenses received 72,95 000 59,21,250
Ce ission Income - 36,634
Salary deputation received 16,64,819 17,67,676
Incentive received 2,79,200
Reimbursement of Emplovee Insurance 2,358,343
TFIN Securities Finance Limited Subsiciary Company Receipt of short term borrowings 2,00,00.000 7,00,00,600
Payment of short term borrowings (2,00,00,000) (7,00,00,000)
Interest on loan (23,014) {34,657)
Reimbursement of Laptop Hire Charges received - =
PM Care Fund - Covid 19 Contribution = =
Salary deputation Paud (8,35,625) (9.19.719)
Brokerage 2,20,010 29,560,913
DP Income received 74,379 1,94,627
Salary deputation received 934,056 10,05,504
. 3 Reimbursement of Rent ** 2,40,000 -
IEEt L Holding Cdmpasy Insurance for Deputed Employees paid -
Reimbursement of M D salary paid by IFCI Ltd (22,85,743) (39,76,201)
Rent {1.02,89,196) (1,03,37,196)
Reimbursement of Telephone & Others (16,835)
Reimbursement of Expenses received - Rent, Oftice Maint,,
IFIN Credit Ltd. Subsidiary Company Employee Cost & Duties and Taxes 5,80,000 5,80,000
IFCI Factars Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary Company E‘F,“;::;:_:?:z:;:ii\p A Blouicieity 3 33; g?’;:;
IFCH Infrastructure Development limited Fellow Subsidiary Company ELU:'T:E’-"?'{?L ) E,UUI‘.; sl
IFCI Ventures Capital Fund Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary Company E;ﬁi{l:vlr::i s 3:;3 16_6};:;
Brokerage on mutual fund - 3,699
o e 5 Gl i e NEtk ami : M Salar (19,44 876) -
Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company Trmlsacli-l{u Chanios A.75.810) G165
Annual maintenance charges = 8,644
Relnted Party Balances
Nume of Related party Nature of Relationship Nature of balance March 31, 2023 Mareh 31,2022
IFCI Limited Holding Company Recervable/{Payable) 6,253,504 (65,835)
IFIN Commodities Lumited Subsidiary Company Receivable/{Payable) (5,710) -
IFIN Sccurities Finance Linted Subsidiary Company Receivable/{Fayable) 3,599 -
IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company Receivable/(Payable) {39.840) 8,555
IFCI Factors Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company Recevable/{Pavable) 14,553 -
IFCT Infrastructure Development Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company Reecervable/( Payahle) (50,755) -
Stock Holdimg Corporatien of India Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company Receivable/ Payuble) 566,24, 787 15,07,10,718

The Company when applying Ind A5 116 to leases previously classified a5 operating lenses, has used practical expedients for not recogmising right-of-use assets and habilities for leases of low value
assets. As the leases of the Cempany are short term leases, the Company has charged the lease expense as a period cost in the Statement of Profit & Loss Aceount.

According to information available with the Management, on the basis of intimation received from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Medium and Smull Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(MSMED Act), the company has no amounts due o Micro, Medium and Small Enterprises under the said act as at March 31, 2023,

Sl No Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the period * =
(b) The delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the appointed date during the year = =

(c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act

() Normal Interest due and payable during the year, for delaved payments, as per the agreed terms

(e} Total interest acerued during the year and remainimg unpaid

This infurmation has been determined to die extent siel pavifes ave been identified on the basis of tnformation available with the Compeany.




1FCI Financial Services Limited
MNotes to the financial statements
(Al amounts wre in Indicn Rupees. miless otherwise stated)

34 Previous year [igures have been regronped wherever necessiry 10 confirm ta the current year classification.

35 The Schedule 111- Divison [T mandates to round off the figures to the nearest hundreds, U 3s. lakhs or millions, or deeimals thereo depending on the Total Tneome of the Comiapany, However, the
Company has opted ta round off the figures to nearest rupess in the view hetter presentation and understaing of the users of the Financial Statements.

36 Third Party balances are subject to confirmations and reconciliations iCany.
¥y

37 (rther Notes
1) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any procecding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.
ueial institutions on the basis of security of current assels.

h) The Company has not been sancnoned working capital limits 1 excess of five croro mupees, in ageregate, from banks o
€1 The Company has not been declared wilfisl defoulier Loy any bank or financial institution ar govenument or any goverunent authority,

d) Considering the information available with the Company, the Company does not [iave any iransactions with companies struck off.

&) There are no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 te 237 of the Cumpanies Act, 2013 during the year.

1) The company has ot advanced or loaned o fnvested funds (either barrawed funds or share premium or any olher sources of kind of lunds) to any other personds) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whethzr recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall (i) directly or indirectly lend or mvest in other persons of entities identified inany
manner whatsoever by o on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiarics) ar (if) provide any gusrantee, security or the like to ar on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficaries.

2] The company has alse not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the b ding (wheiher Jed in wriling or otherwise) that the
company shall (i) dircetly or indirectly lend or mvest in other persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behall of the Funding Party (Liltimate Beneheiaries) or {ii) provide any

guarantee, seeurity of tha like on bebalf of the Ullimate Beneliciaries.

) The Company do not have any tansaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed ns income in the tax assessiments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
during any of the years,

i} The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

) Financial Ratios :

s i As at 31st March 2023 As at Mst Varch 2021
S.No Particulars Components s 5 =
Fig. in ¥ Ratin Fig. in & Ratin
1 Current Ratio :
Current Asset Financial Asscts + Other Current Assety 43,21,65.833 45.05.00,849
Current Liabilitics Fingneial Lisbilitieg + Ocher Current 17,87,39,622 242 28.74.30,774 1.57
Liabilities + Provisions
1 Return on Equity Ratio
Net Profit after Taxes Profit {Loss) for the year afler taxes {3,82,28,002) 1,06,99,864
Average Sharcholder’s Equiry Equity sharc capital + Other Equity 68,56,15,544 -5.58% 70,05.86,79% 1.53%
3 Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio : ’
Met Credit Sales Revenue from Operations 13,55,74,506 16,85.39.967
Average Accounts reccivable Average Trade receivables 3,38,54,079 4.00 4,3525.552 347
4 Trade Payables Turnover Ratio :
Mel Credil Purchases (Operating Cost)  |Operational expense 479,47 B34 6.19.22.806
Average Aecounts payable Average Trade Payubles 22,20,00,830 0.22 25.61.85.166 0,24
H Net Capital Turnover Ratin :
Met Sales Revenue from Operations 13,55,74.506 16,85,39,967
Working Capital Current Assets - Current Liobilit 25,35,26,211 0.53 16.20,79.074 1.03
f Net Profit Ratin :
Met Prafit Profi {Loss) for the year after axes (3,82,25,902) 106,99 864
Met Sales Revenue from Operations 13.55,74.506 -28.20% 16,85,39.967 6.35%
7 Return on Capital Employed :
Enmings Before Intevest and Taxes Prafitd Loss) before Interest and Tax (3,82,05,888) 1,07,54,521
Capital Employed i‘::’;";:’;’:;::";;;ﬂ?r:;ﬁ“'” el 66,42,07,316 5.75% 70.7143,773 152%
8 Return on [nvestment :
Met Profit after Taxes Profit {Loss) lor the year afier tases (3,82,28,902) 1.0, 00 Aid
Asscts Totl Assels - Curvent Liabilities 67,51,39.305 -5.66% T1.75.55,237 L49%
Note:

1. The variance in the ajoresaid financial satios as compared to the previons Vear s die tor doss ineurred and decrease i revenne in e ceevent vear of the Conipiant.

2. The Debe-Equity Ratio, Debt Service Caverage ftatio and Inventory iustover atio awe ot applicable to tie Compiny.
The Siguificant accounting palicies and Notes i Accounts are an iategral part of these financial statemernts

As per our attached Report of even date

For 5. YENKATRAM & CO. LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors of
Chartered Accountants IFCI Financial Services Limited
Firm Itegd No.0D46565/ £200095 CIN: UT4899DL1995GO1064034

cg_\ - oﬁ

R, Voldganathan S Karpagam . Al Saxena
Partucr Managing Direcior Nominee Dircclor
M.Np : 018953 DIN: 19755388 DIN: 12698585

Company Secretary
M.No: AS1395

Place : Chennai Place: Chennai
Date: May 12,2023 Date: May 12, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF M/S IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of M/s. IFCI Financial
Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its Subsidiaries (Holding
Company and its Subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™). which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2023. and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred

to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31* March, 2023,
ol consolidated loss, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year

then ended.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with

the Cade of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with




the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Key Audit Matters

The companies comprising of the Group are unlisted public sector entities (where the
ultimate shareholding of the entities owned by the Government of India is more than
51%). We have been informed by the management that the transactions of the Group
are not: (a) significant as compared to the size of operations of its Ultimate Holding
Company; (b) the transactions of the Company are not complex; and (c¢) of such
nature to be of public interest. In view of the above, we are not mentioning any Key
Audit Matters.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report

Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not

include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. -

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the

course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these Consolidated Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position. consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, Consolidated Changes in Equity and
Consolidated Cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
mainienance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial

Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for

overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Ind Floor
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial

Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always delect

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial

Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its
Subsidiary Companies which are companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future

events or conditions may cause the Group o cease to continue as a going concern.




e Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements. including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of 3 Subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total
assets of T 37,55,27,396/- as at 31" March 2023, total revenues (including other income) of
2 2.91,48.122/- and net cash outflows amounting to  (52,20,332)/- for the year ended on that date,
as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect ot these Subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid Subsidiaries is based solely on the

reports of the other auditors.




Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and

Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our

reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements /

financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

b

. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”™), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of

the Order, to the extent applicable.

We are enclosing our report in terms of section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of
the books and records of the company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanation given to us, in “Annexure 2" on the directions issued by the

Comptroller and Auditors General of [ndia.

. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report

of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of

subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘other matters’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.




e} We have been informed that the provisions of the section 164(2) of the Act in respect of the
disqualification of directors are not applicable to the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries
incorporated in India. being a Government Company in terms of notification no. G.S.R.
463(E) dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Government

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 1o
Consolidated Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure 37 which is based on the auditor’s reports of the Holding
Company and its Subsidiary Companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an
unmadified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
control over financial reporting of those companies, for reasons stated therein.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

2]
e

r

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion

and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 32 of the Notes forming part of
Consolidated Financial Statements.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foresecable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company. and its Subsidiary Companies
incorporated in India.

iv.

(a) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company have represented that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company have represented, that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds

have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
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entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise. that the Company shall. whether. directly or indirectly. lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations made by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company under sub-

clause (a) and (b) hereinabove contain any material mis-statement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act, in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions
of section 197 of the Act are not applicable as the Companies included in the Group are

Government Company.

For S. Venkatram & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
~J0 \ FRN. No. 0046565/5200095

-
and Fioor ™ <

3 mé_-rm Road *OJ
awarpel. | %
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g \rp\’t i

Bred ;\E':‘r_-‘f}f‘ R. Vaidyanathan

e SRR
Place: Chennai Partner
Date: 12" May 2023 M.No. 018953

UDIN: 23013453 BhaTaf-tAoL



ANNEXURE “1” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

REPORT ON THE COMPANY (AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2020 (“THE ORDER™),
UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION (11) OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 (the ACT)

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date to the members of M/S IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED on the

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023)

(xx1) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the following
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, the CARQ

report relating to them has been issued by the respective auditors till the date of this audit report:

Holding
Clause number

Company/subs )
of the CARO

idiary/Associat

Name of the Entity CIN ) report which is
e/Joint .
qualified or
Venture
adverse
Company
IFCI Financial Services Limited | U74899DI1.1995G0OI1064034 Holding vii & xvii
IFIN Commodities Limited U93000TN2009GOI1070524 Subsidiary XVii

For S. Venkatram & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 0046565/58200095

2nd Floor "\ /
;[ 218, TTK Road —
Alwarpel, vV

Chennai-18 /

R. Vaidyanathan

Place: Chennai Partner
Date: 12" May 2023 M. No. 018953

UDIN: 24018963 BgI0FE402




ANNEXURE “2” to INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

REPORT ON THE DIRECTIONS ISSUED BY THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(Referred to in Paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date to the members of IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED on the

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2023)

S.No.

GENERAL DIRECTIONS

AUDITOR’S COMMENT

L

In respecet of Holding Company: M/s IFCI Finan

cial Services Limited:

Whether the company has system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes,
of
IT

system on the integrity of the accounts

the implications of processing

accounting  transactions outside
along with the financial implications, if

any, may be stated.

The Company has a system in place to process
all the accounting transactions through its 1T
systems with the of accounting
software — LIDHA DIDHA (LD) and Tally

accounting software. The main activity is

support

accounting for brokerage income earned from
clients trading in equities and derivatives
which are updated on a daily basis based on
the trades carried through the exchange with
the support of file / data shared by the
exchanges. In respect of payroll related data,
based on the files received from payroll
department entries are uploaded periodically /
monthly in the respective ledger accounts in
the accounting software. Other administrative
and routine entries are passed through the
accounting software with appropriate menu-

based operations. Based on the verification

carried out by us during the course of our audit




we have not come across any discrepancies in
processing of accounting transactions outside
which has a significant

the IT systems

implications on the integrity of accounts.

Whether there is any restructuring of any
existing loan or cases of waiver / write
off of debts / loans / interest. ete. made
by a lender to the company due to
company’s inability to repay the loan?
If yes. the financial impact may be

stated.

As per the information and explanations given
to us the Company has not made any
borrowings where there was any restricting of

loans or waiver of loans,

Whether funds received / receivable for
specific schemes from Central / State
Government or its agencies were
properly accounted for / utilized as per
its terms and conditions? List the cases

of deviation.

As per the information and explanations given
to us the Company has neither received any
funds nor is receivable for specific schemes
/ State Government or ils

from Central

agencies.

In respect of Subsidiary Company: M/s IFIN Credit Limited:

I

Whether the company has system in
place (o process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications
outside IT

accounting  transactions

system on the integrity of the accounts

along with the financial implications, if

any, may be stated.

of processing of

As per the information and explanations given
lo us, the company processes all  (he

accounting  transactions in  computerized
environment. No accounting transactions were

processed outside 1T system of the company.

Whether there is any restructuring of any
existing loan or cases of waiver / write
off of debts / loans / interest, ele. made
by a lender to the company due lo
company's inability to repay the loan?
If yes. the financial impact may be

Staled.

There has been no restructuring of existing
loans or cases of  waiver / write off debts/
loan/ interest efc made by lender company due
to company’s inability to repay loan and hence
no financial impact on the financials of the

company.

T
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Whether funds received / receivable for
specific: schemes from Central /' State
Governmeni  or ils  agencies  were
properly accounted for / wtilized as per
its terms and conditions? List the cases

of deviation.

There were no funds  (grants/subsidy ete.)
receivedireceivable for specific schemes from

Central/ State Government o its agencics.

In respect of Subsidiary Company: M/s IFIN Conunodities Limited

4.

Whether the company has system in place
lo process all the accounting transactions
I yes,

implications of processing of accounting

through 1T System? the
transactions outside 1T system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, i any, may be

slated.

The the
transactions through third party softwares like
LIDHA DIDHA (LD} and tally software for

maintaining the books of account. The other

Company  maintains accounting

transactions are being carvied out manually.
The main activity is accounting for commodity
income earned from clients trading in equities
and derivatives which are updated on a daily
basis based on the trades carried through the
exchange with the support of file/data shared
by the exchanges. In respect of payroll related
data, based on the files received from the
pavroll — depariment  entries are updated
periodically/monthly in the respective ledger

account in the accounting software.

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver /write off
of debis/loans/interest elc. made by «a
lender to the company due to the
company's inability to repay the loan? If
ves, the financial impact may be stated.
(In case lender is Government company,
then this direction is also applicable for

statutory auditor of lender company)

There has been no existing loans or cases of
waiver / write off debis/ loan/ interest efc
made by lender to company and hence

restructuring dues does not arise.

Whether  funds  (granis/subsidy  elc)

received /receivable for specific schemes

Not Applicable. The company has not received

any Grant/Subsidy during the year under




fram  Central/State  Government  or ity
Agencies were properly  accounted  for
4

| Jutitized as per its term and conditions:

| List the cases of Deviations

aclit.

In respect of Subsidiary Company: M/s IFIN Securities Finance Limited

£

Whether the company has system in place
to process all the accounting transactions
through — IT  System? I yes, the
implications of processing of accounting
(ransactions outside [T system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the
Jinancial implications, if any, may be

stated.

The company has system in place (o process
all the accounting transactions through IT
system using tally accounting sofiware.

The main activity is accounting for interes
income earned from clients for loans against
shares and margin  funding which are
extracted from Miles Software and  loan
against  mutual  funds is  extracted  from
Dhanlap software (ithird party sofiware) which
are updated in the tally accounting software.

In respect of payroll related data, based on the

files received from payvroll department entries

are uploaded periodically/monthly in  the

respective  ledger accounts in  the lally
accounting software.

Based on the verification carried out by us
during the course of our audit we have not
come across any discrepancies in processing
of accounting transactions outside the [T
systems which has a significant implication on

the integrity of accounts.

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver /wrile off
of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a
to the

lender company die to the

company'’s inability to repay the loan? Iff

yes, the financial impact may be stated.

As per the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not taken any

borrowings and hence not commenied upon.




? | Whether  fimds — (granis/'subsidy eic) | The compeny  is a Non-Banking Financial
received /receivable jor specific schemes | Company registered with RBI and no funds
Jrom  Central/State  Government  or s | are received from any government agency for
Agencies were properly accounted for | specific schemes.

/udilized as per its terin and conditions?

List the cases of Deviations.

For S. Venkatram & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 0046565/S200095

w2

R. Vaidyinathan

5, 9
3 s
e
2nd Floar \<
y [ 218, TTK Road ) “g
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ennai-18 ©

Partner

M.No. 018953
UDIN: 23¢(8963 B8 {040

Place: Chennai

Date: 12" May 2023




ANNEXURE “3” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE
AFORESAID CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF
SUBSECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (*the Act”)

(Referred to Point f in Paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date to the members of IFCT FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED on

the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1% March, 2023.)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended 31% March, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference
to the Consolidated Financial Statements of IFCI Financial Services Limited (hereinafter referred
to as “Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary Companies, which are companies incorporated in

India. as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Companies, which
are companies incorporated in India. are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements based on the criteria
established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.




Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the
Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act. 2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

crror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls

system with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements is a

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with




generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to

the Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on

the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intermal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us the Holding Company
and its Subsidiary Companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have. in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements were operaling effectively as at 31 March, 2023, based on the internal control with
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established by the respective companies

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of




Internal  Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of [ndia.
Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements insofar as it relates to 3 Subsidiary Companies, which are companies incorporated in
India. is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For S. Venkatram & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 0046565/S200095

S

R. Vaidyanathan

Partner
M. No. 018953
UDIN: 2301 8952 b5 ThiA02

Place: Chennai

Date: 12" May 2023
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IFCI Finaneial Services Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(ANl amounts are in Indian Rupees, wnless otherwise siated)

Total Equity and Liabilities

Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
1. Non-Current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 75.19,475 71,26,956
(b) Other Intangible Assels 3 3562336 3597976
(¢) Goodwill 22,53 ,875 22,53,875
(d) Financial Assets
- Investments
- Loans 4 7.61,64,191 1,77.35.871
- Other Financial Assets 5 4.29.65912 16,11,96,653
(&) Deferred tax assets (net) 6,71,334 3,355,291
{f) Other Mon-Current Assets 6 4,19,28,622 4,25.14,774
Total Non-Current Assets 17,50,65,754 23.47,81,396
2. Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
- Investments 7 2,54,00,011 10,22,03,092
- Trade Receivables 8 1,77,61,277 5,12,47,492
- Cash and Cash equivalents 9 12,13,83,593 14,64 92 498
- Bank balances other than above 10 31,03,63,044 17,39,19,081
- Loans 11 5,94,06,063 6,53,17,387
- Other Financial Assets 5 13,41,27,301 19,64 00,947
(b) Other Current Assets 12 266,80 784 1,85,77,249
Total Current Assets 69,51,31,073 75,41,57,746
Total Assets 87,01,96,826 98,89,39,142
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 41,53,37,090 41,53,37.090
(b) Qther Equity 23,36,58,350 25,59,01,436
Total Equity 64,89,95,440 67,12,38,526
Liabilities
1. Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
- Other Financial Liabilities 14 37,14,166 30.43.726
(b) Provisions 17 84,32 983 73,24,242
(¢) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) - 4,38,148
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,21,47,149 1,17,06,116
2. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
- Trade Payables 15
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 16,84,22,354 27,60,68,577
- Other Financial Ligbilities 14 24,68,264 19,28 241
{b) Other Current Liabilities 16 3,74,89,022 2,72,67.915
(c) Provisions 17 6,74,597 7.29,766
Total Current Liabilities 20,90,54,237 30,59,94,499

§7,01,96,826

98,89,39,142

The Significant accounting policies and Notes to Accownts are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statenenty

As per our attached Report of even date
For S. VENKATRAM & CO, LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd No.004656S/ 5200095

Partner
M.No : 018953

Alwarpet,
Chennai-18

Place : Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023

£\

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

IFCI Financial Services Limited
CIN: U74899DL1993G0O1064034

—

§ Karpagam
Managing Direct
N: 09755388

hree
Secretary
M.No : A51395

Place: Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023

A
N
D

C

tul Saxena

miminee Director
IN: 02698585

V Pighparaj
hief Fihancial Officer




IFCI Financial Services Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from Operation 18 14.97,55.090 18,32,07,797
Other Income 19 2,71,32,708 4,50,81,241
Total Income 17,68,87,798 22,82,89,038
Expenses
Operational Expense 20 5.04,35.404 6,43,16,551
Employee Benefit Expenses 21 8,31,91,262 8,52,22,720
Finance Costs 22 2,10.854 10,35,374
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 23 18,29.435 12,87,742
Other Expenses 24 5,38,05,441 5,26,78,792
Impairment on Financial Instruments (ineluding Bad Debis written off) 25 50.84.,431 1,52,80,762
Impairment of Investment in Subsidiary - s
Total Expenses 19,45,56,827 21,98,21,940
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item and Tax -1,76.69,029 84,67,098
Exceptional Items
Profit/(Loss) before Income Tax Expense -1,76,69,029 84,67,098
Current Tax ]0,(}0,586 24,34 371
Deferred Tax 146612 (11,71,744)
Earlier Year Tax -18,733 “
MAT Credit Entitlement -8,38.400 -
Income Tax Expense -6,03,159 12,62,627
Profit(Loss) after Tax -1,70,65,870 72,04,471
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of Defined Benetit Liability (Asset) -51,84 806 32,56,141
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 7,589 8,928
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -51,77.217 32,65,069
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax expense -51,77,217 32,65,069
Total Comprehensive Income -2,22.43,087 1,04,69,540
Earnings per Share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 26 -0.41 0.17

The Significant accounting policies and Notes to Accounts are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our attached Report of even date
For 8. VENKATRAM & CO, LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd No.004656S/ S200095

IFCI Financial Services Limited
CIN: U74899DL1995GO1064034

JSfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

v e

R. Vaid¥anathan
Partner
M.No : 018953

CS |C_b4f>j"r’¢_-;- Amgﬁ{:

Nominee Director
DIN: 02698585

S Karpagam
Managing Director

‘ ]

DIN: 09755388

A ¥ Pushpuraj
Chief Financial Officer

\‘&‘

i fl_fu_(:_CW/

Place: Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023

Place : Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023



IFCI Finaneial Services Limited
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Il amounis are in Iiediom Rupees, undess afertse siored)

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before Tax (1,76,69,029) 84,67,098
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation 18,29,435 12,87,742
Profit on Sale of Fixed assets 9,570 (1,12,493)
Dividend Received (considered separately under Investment Activities) - #
Finance Costs 2,10,854 10,35,374
Fair value change m Investment 18,89,339 5252394
Net Gain on Sale of Investments (62,16,393) (89,25,602)
Loss on sale of Investment
Interest Income (1,65,37,160) (1,53,16,390)
Loss on scrapped asset - &
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Liability {51,84,806) 32,56,141
Impaimment of Receivables 50,84,431 1,52,80,762
Operating Cash Flow before Working Capital Changes (3,65,83,760) 1,02,25,026
Adjustmen ;
{Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables 2,84,01,784 (2,96,18,850)
(Increasc) / Decrease in Loans & Advances - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current Assets (81,12,535) (51,30,137)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable (10,76,46,223) 4,05,95.543
Increase / (Deeresse) in Other Current Liabilities 1,02.21,107 (65,30,903)
{(Increase) / Decrease in Short term Loans and Advances
Increase / (Deerease) in Provisions 10,53,572 (21,38,423)
(Increase) / Decrease in Financial Asset 8,84,377 (4,79,99,060)
Inerease / (Deerease) in Financial Liability 3,10,463 (11,69,576)
Cash generated from Operating Activities (11,14,71,215) (4,17,66,381)
Income Taxes Paid (Met of Refunds) (40,57,605) (16,22 387)
Net Cash from Operating Aclivities (A) (11,55,28,821) (4,33,88,768)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (18,69,887) (51,78,675)
Purchase of Intangible Assets (3,27,000}) (22,64,840)
Sale of Fixed Asscts 1,000 1,15,791
{Increase)/ Decrease in Fixed Deposits (93,40,949) (57.91,151)
Sale of Current Investment 8,11,30,139 4,03,00,500
lnterest received 1,65,37,160 1,53,16,390
Gratuity fund asset 45,00,306 (26,30,082)
Dividend Income - -
(Increase)/ Decrease in Investments
Purchase of Current In
(Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 9,06,30,769 4,00,17,933
(Cash flow from Financing Activities
Finance Cost (2,10,854) (10,35,374)
Share Premium (net of expenses)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (C) (2,10,854) (10,35,374)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (2,51,08,906) (44,06,209)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,64,92,498 15,08,98,707
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 12,13,83,593 14,64,92,498

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as per the Cash Flow Statement

Balance with Banks in Curent Accounts 9,28,73,381 11,49,91,265
Cash on Hand 10,212 1,233
Short term Deposits 2,85,00,000 3,15,00,000

12,13,83,593 14,64,92,498

tidlatedd Finaneial S

The Significant acconmiing policies and Notes to Accownts are an integral part of these C

As per our attached Report of even date

For S. VENKATRAM & CO, LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No.004656S/ 5200095

Partner
M.No : 018953

Place : Chennai
Date: May 12,2023

Sfor and on behalf of the Board of Direetors of
IFCI Financial Services Limited
CIN: U74899DL1595GO1064034

e

S Karpaga Atul Saxena
Muanaging Diregtor Nominee Director
IN; 097553, DIN: 02698585

Co " Chief Financial Officer

M.No : A51395

Place: Chennai
Date: May 12,2023




IFCI Financial Services Limited

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, uniess otherwise stated)

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period, April 01, 2021
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period, April 01, 2021
Profit or Loss for the period

Transferred from Retained Earnings to Statutory reserve

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period, April 01, 2022
Changes in equity share capital due to prior peried errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period, April 01, 2022
Profit or Loss for the period

Transferred from Retained Earnings to Statutory reserve

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Reserves and Surplus

Equity Share capital Serurities Prow i Statutory Reserves  General Reserve Auinlzaition Retained Earnings Total
Reserve Reserve
41,53,37,090 45,16,43,790 65,83.000 95,01,851 17,45305 (22,40,42.051) 66,07 68 986
41,53,37,090 45,16,43,790 65,83,000 95,01,851 17,45,305 (22,40,42,051) 66,0768 986
72,04,471 72,04,471
6,12,666 (6,12,666)
32,65,069
41,53.37,090 45,16,43,790 71,95,666 95,01,851 17,45,305 (21,41,85,176) 66,79,73,457
41,53,37,090 45,16,43,790 71,95,666 95,01,851 17,45,305 (21,41,85,176) 66,79,73.457
41,53,37,090 45,16,43,790 71,95,666 95,01,851 17,45,305 -21,41,85,176 67,12,38,526
-1,70,65,870 (1.70,65,870)
7,80,607 -7.80.,607 -
-51,77.217 (51,77.217)
41,53,37.09%0 45,16,43,.790 79,76,273 95,01,851 17,45,305 (23,72,08,870) 64,89,95,440

The Significant accounting policies and Notes to Accounis are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements

As per our attached Report of even date
For 8. VENKATRAM & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd No.004656S/ 5200095

M.No : 018953

Place : Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IFCI Financial Services Limited
CIN: U74899DL1995GOI064034

DM\. M ‘ \Yqh.d\
S Karpagam i Atul Saxena
Managing Director Nominee Director

DIN: 09755388 DIN: 02698585

AV Pushparaj
Chief Financial Officer

M.No : A51395

Place: Chennai
Date: May 12, 2023



IFCI Financial Services Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwvise stared)

A

a)

Significant Accounting Policies

Groups Background:

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprises of standalone financial statements of IFCI Financial Services Limited (the Parent) and its subsidiarics
collectively the group for the year ended March 31,2023, IFCI Financial Services Ltd (IFIN) was promoted in 1995, by IFCI Ltd., to provide a wide
range of financial products and services to investors, institutional and retail, IFIN is primarily involved in Stock Broking, Investment Banking, Mutual
Fund Distribution & Advisory Services, Deposilory Participant Services, Insurance Products Distribution and the like.

IFIN is a SEBI registered Stock Broker on National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) cte, and is positioned as a
global financial supermarket, built on the foundations of incisive research and frust. Intense interaction with investors helps us understand their specitic
needs and suggest holistic and appropriate financial solutions. Our team of professionals continuously scans the financial arena and stay ever prepared
to educate investors and pariner them in creating enduring wealth.

Subsidiaries:

- The subsidiary company IFIN Commodity Limited is a registered member of Multi Commadity Exchange Limited and National Commodity and
Derivatives Exchange (NCDEX) and it is primarily engaged in the business of providing Commedity Market related transaction services.

- The subsidiary company IFIN Securities Finance Limited is a Non Banking Finance Company, registered u/s 45-TA of Reserve Bank of India Act,
and is primarily engaged in the business of providing loans against shares and margin funding.

- The subsidiary company [FIN Credit Limited is not engaged in any business activity.

IFCI Limited, our legendary Parent Institution
The Government of India cstablished The Industrial Finance Corporation of India (IFCT) on July 1, 1948 as India's first and premier Development
Financial Tnstitution, to cater to the long - term financial needs of the industrial sector.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
This nole provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

(i) Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been prepared by the Group in accordance with Indian Accounling
Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are the fourth Consolidated financial statements of the Company prepared under Tnd AS
and the date of transition to the Ind AS was April 1,2017.

The Consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuc by the Company's Board of Directors on May 12, 2023.

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are
imeasured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies.

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency
These Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (2), which is the Group's functional and presentation curtency. All amounts are
counded off to the nearest two decimal, except when otherwise indicated,

(i) Use of Estimates and Judgment

The preparation of the Consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management 1o make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilitis, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of the financial statements and reparted amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, Appropriate changes in
astimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in cireumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
Consolidated financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statermnents.

Estimates and undetlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

(a) Judgements

[nformation about the judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the
Consolidated financial statements is included here:

Classification of financial assets ; Assessment of business model within which the assets ure held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of
the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Impairment of financial assets : establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial assets has increased significantly since
initial recognition, determining methodology for incorporating forward looking information into measurement of expected credit loss (ECL) and
selection of models used to measure ECL.
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Equity accounted investees : The Company has significant influence over its subsidiaries (investee) of [FIN Commedities Limited (ICOM), IFIN
Securities Finance Limited (ISFL) & IFIN Credit Limited (ICL).

(b} Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31st
March 2023 1s included in the following notes;

Impairment of financial instruments : Determining inputs into the ECL measurement model, including incorporation of forward looking information
including key assumptions used in estimating recoverable cash flows

»  Determination of the fair value of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs.

»  Measurement of defined benefit obligations : key actuarial assumptions.

«  Recognition of deferred tax assets : availability of future taxable profit against which carry forward tax losses can be used.

= Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitalized

«  Estimates regarding the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) for non financial assets based on the future cash flows.; and

«  Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

(vi) Business Combinations

Business Combinations are accounted for using the acquisitions method. At the acquisition date, identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
measured at fair value. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at
their acquisition date fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefils is not probable. The Consideration
transferred is measured at fair value at acquisition date and includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. However, deferred tax asset or
liability and any liability or asset relating to employee benefit arrangements arising from a business combination are measured and recognized in
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 12, Income taxes and Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits, Respectively .Where the consideration transferred
exceed the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the excess is recorded as goodwill. Alternatively, in case of a
bargain purchase wherein the consideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the
difference as a gain in other comprehensive income and accumulate the gain in equity as capital reserve. The costs of acquisitions excluding those
relating to issue of equity or debt securities are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

In case of business combinations involving entities under common control, the above policy does not apply. Business combinations involving entilies
under common control are accounted for using the pooling of interests method. The net assets of the transferor entity or business are accounted at their
carrying amount on the date of the acquisition subject to necessary adjustments required to harmonic accounting policies. Any excess or short fall of
the consideration paid over the share capital of transferor entity or business is recognized as capital reserve under equity.

Goodwill

Goodwill is an asset representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually
identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the consideration transferred over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, measured in accordance with Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations,

Goodwill is considered to have indefinite useful life and hence is not subject to amortization but tested for impairment at least annually. After initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination, is from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the group's cash
generation Units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from the combination. A CGU is the Smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. Each CGU or a combination of CGU to which
goodwill is so allocated represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose and it is not larger than an
operating segment of the group.

A CGU to which the goodwill is allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the CGU may be impaired, by
comparing the carrying amount of the CGU, including the goodwill with the recoverable amount of the CGU. If the recoverable amount of the CGU
exceed the carrying amount of the CGU exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU, the group recognizes an impairment loss by first reducing the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to other assets of the CGU pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
CGU. Any impairment loss on goodwill is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss recognized on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods,

On disposal of a CGU to which goodwill is allocated the goodwill associated with the disposed CGU is included in the carrying amount of the CGU
when determining the gain or loss on disposal.

(v) Principles and assumptions used for consolidated financial statements and pro-forma adjustments

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared applying the principles laid in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 110 Consolidated
Financial Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as considered appropriate for the purposes of these Consolidated Balance
Sheet, and Profit and Loss Account, together referred to in as 'Consolidated Financial Statements'.
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b)

[FCI Financial Services Ltd's (the parent company or the holding company) shareholding in the following companies as on March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022 are as under:

; Dat? e As on 31st Mar 2023 As on March 31, 2022
Name of the Subsidiary Country R
became a No of shares % of No of shares % of
Subsidiary held holding held holding
[FIN Commodities Limited India 30-Jan-09 50,00,000 100% 50,00,000 100%
IFIN Credit Limited India 01-Feb-10 25,00,000 100% 25,00,000 100%
IFIN Securities Finance Ltd. (Formerly known as
Narayan Sriram Investments Private Ltd) India 02-Mar-11 30,01,0000  100% 30,001,000 100%

(vi) Principles used in preparing Consolidated Financial statements:
a) In preparing consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiarics is combined on a line by line basis by
adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

b) Intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparation of consolidated financial statements

¢) The cost to the parent of its investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of ecach subsidiary, at the date on which investment in
each subsidiary is made, is eliminated.

(i) In the case of IFIN Commadities Ltd., since the amount paid is equal (o the paid up capital of the subsidiary, there is neither goodwill nor a capital
reserve.

(ii) In the case of IFIN Credit Ltd., IFCI Financial Services Ltd. had acquired the 100% of the share capital in two stages i.e. initially 45% in the
accounting year 2008 - 2009 and the balance in 2009 - 2010. The total amount paid is Rs.2,79,00,000 for a net asset value of Rs.1,98,81,335/- as on
01.02.2010 i.e., the date on which the Company became a subsidiary (Wholly owned). The surplus of Rs.80,18,665/- is adjusted against the
Amalgamation Reserve of Rs.97 63,970/~ leaving a balance of Rs.17,45,305/-.

(iii) In the case of IFIN Securities Finance Ltd (Formerly known as Narayan Sriram Investments Private Ltd.), IFCI Financial Services Ltd. had
acquired the 100% of the share capital for a consideration of Rs. 73,23,063 for a total equity of Rs.1,00,000/- as on 02,03.2011 i.e., the date on which
the Company became a subsidiary (Whally owned). The total Net worth as on date of acquisition of Rs.50,69,206/- and the balance amount of Rs.22,
53,857 is shown as goodwill.

(vii) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method preseribed in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows’

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(viii) Measurement of Fair Values
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and

liabilities.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.¢. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.

derived from prices).
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has oceurred.

Financial Instruments
(i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition,
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(ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at
- Amortised Cost,

- FVOCI; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All financial asscts not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial assct that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial Asseis; Subsequent measurement and gams and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These asscts are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss.

FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or Joss.

Financial Liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when :

— the contractual rights to the cash tlows from the financial asset expire, or

— the Group transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance shect, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial Liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In
this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a
lesally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assct and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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c)

d)

¢)

Investments:
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 (i.e. other than equity investments in subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures) are measured at FVTPL.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, arc recognised in profit and loss account. However on initial recognition of an
equily instrument that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made
on an investment by investment basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost (cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition
including applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets) and is net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition [or its intended vse and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

(iii) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using
straight-line method and is generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Residual value in respect of assets is considered as 5% of the cost for computing depreciation.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Useful life (in years)
Computer equipment's and accessories 3
Servers 6
Office equipment's 5
Motor Vehicles 10

Furniture and fittings 10

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the month in which asset is disposed of.

(iv) Derccognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the ditference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other Intangible Assets

(i) Recognition and Measurement

Other intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangibles are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure on internally penerated intangibles is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

(iii) Amortization
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is included in
depreciation and amortisation in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Assets Useful life (in years)

Computer Software 6
Non compete fees 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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n

g)

Impairment

(i) Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVOCI. At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether financial assets carricd at amortized cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset is “credit - impaired” when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

impairment loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do not contain a significant
financing component. The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it rccognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime impairment pattern at each balance sheet date, right from its initial recognition.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured al amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount
of a financial asset is wrilten off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(ii) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or Cash Generating Unit
(CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Group’s non-financial assets and deferred tax assels, are reviewed at each reporting date fo determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated, For impairment testing, assets that do not generate
independent cash inflows are grouped together into CGUs. Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated to reduce the carrying
amounts of the assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Group reviews at each reporting date whether there is any
indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used Lo determine
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount docs not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had heen recognised.

Employee Benefits

(i) Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A lability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Group has a present legal or consiructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Provident Fund

Employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the Group make monthly contributions
to the Regional Provident Fund equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. The Group has no further obligations under the plan beyond its
monthly contributions, The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds arc
duc and there are no other obligations other than the contribution payable.

(iii) Gratuity

The Group provides for gratuity in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, a defined benefit retirement plan (the Plan) covering all
employees. The plan, subject to the provisions of the above Act, provides a lump sum payment to eligible employees at retirement, death, incapacitation
or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The gratuity Scheme is operated
through Group gratuity Scheme of LIC. Gratuity liability is accrued and provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method made at the end of each financial period. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCL

(iv) Compensated Absences

The policy provides for that an employee is entitled to 24 days of earned leave per year and maximum of 30 days Jeave subject to availability of Annual
Leave standing to the credit of the employee at any time during the year will be paid as lcave salary calculated on the Gross component. The expenses
on account thus arising are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Provision for long-term compensated absences is accrued and provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial period.
The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method. Short-term encashment of accumulated leave balances are accounted for in the year
in which the leave balances are credited to employees on actual basis,
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h) Provisions (other than for employee benefits) and Contingent Liabilities
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rafe that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost. Expected fulure operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain [uture events, not wholly within the control of the Group, or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future
outflow of resources, or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having
a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for,

i) Revenue Recognition
(i) Brokerage Income is recognized on the trade date of the transaction upon confirmation of the transactions by the exchanges.
(ii) Loan Syndication Fees are recognised when the right to receive the income is established.
(iii) Depository Services incomes are recognised on the basis of agreements entered into with clients and when the right to receive the income is
established.
(iv) Insurance Commission from Agency business is booked upon actual receipt of commission from the principal,
(v) Commission from selling of mutual funds is accounted on receipt basis.
(vi) Recovery from bad debits written off is recognised as income on the basis of actual realisation from customers.
(vii) Dividends declared by the respective Companies till the close of the accounting period are accounted for as income when the right to receive the
dividend is established.
(viii) Interest income from financial assets is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

(ix) Interest earned on loans against shares (financial asset) in case of NBFC is recognized based on the effective interest rate (EIR) method as per Ind
AS 109 & 32,
(x) All other income are recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realization/ collection.

j)  Income Tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(i) Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively cnacted by the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultancously.

(i) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assels or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Group recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assels — unrecognised or recognised, are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit

will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilitics and assets on

a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultancously. /Z(
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k)

m)

n)

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are interest incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs dircetly attributable to acquisition or canstruction of
an qualifying asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per Share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable to owners of the Group

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, excluding treasury shares

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity

shares.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash on hand and at banks including short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Other bank deposits which are not in the nature of cash and cash equivalents with a maturity
periad of more than three months are classified as bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents

Other bank deposits which are not in the nature of cash and cash equivalents with a maturity period of more than three months are classified as bank

balances other than cash and cash equivalents,
Fixed Deposits with a maturity period of more than 12 Months are classified under Other financial asset (Non current)

2nd Floor
218, TTK Road

Alwarpel,
Ri-18
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IFCI Financial Services Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

3 Other Intangible Assets

Reconciliation of Carrying Amount
Computer Others - Non

Software compete fees Total

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at April 1, 2021 3,57,44,903 1,32,00,000 4,89,44,903
Additions 22,64,840 - 22,64,840
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,80,09,743 1,32,00,000 5,12,09,743
Additions 3,27,000 - 3,27,000
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3,83,36,743 1,32,00,000 5,15,36,743
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment Losses

Balance as at April 1, 2021 3,42,59,120 1,32,00,000 4,74,59,120
Amortisation for the year 1,52,647 - 1,52,647
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,44,11,768 1,32,00,000 4,76,11,768
Amortisation for the year 3,62,640 3,62,640
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3,47,74,408 1,32,00,000 4,79,74,408

Carrying Amounts (net)
As at March 31, 2023 35,62,336 - 35,62,336
As at March 31, 2022 39,24,976 - 35,97,976




IFCI Financial Services Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees, unfess otherwise staed)

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

4 Loans

Security Deposits

Seeured, considered good 7.61.64,191 1,77,35.871
Unsecured, eonsidered good . -
Doubtful - o

7,61,64,191 1,77,35.871

5  Other Financial Assets

Bank deposil accounts (more than 12 manths maturity) 63,72.412 13,34,75,426
Security Deposits 16,66,92,301 22,00,93,673
Rent advances 40,28,500 40,28,500

17,70,93,213 35,75,97,509
Current® 13,41,27,301 19,64,00,047
Nan-Current®* 4,25,65,912 16,11,96,653

17‘7033‘213 35,75,97,509

* Depostt amormting to 3 13,40,50,173 (Frevious year - T 15,17,18,173) represents margin money maintained with Exchange

** Non-Current deposii incluedes fived deposits aggregating 1o T48,72,412 (Previous Year - 3 10,36,87,745) agatnst which lien has been marked by the banks for meeling the margin and
base minimum capital requiremenis with NSE & BSE for trading i varions portfolios.

6 Other Non-Current Assets

Balance with IT Authorities 4,17,34,143 3,78,19,989
Fair Value of Plan Asset - Gratuity fund 1,94,479 46,94,783
4,19,28,622 4,25,14,774

7 luvestment - Current

Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FYTFL)

- In Equity [nstrument 4913 4913

- In Mutual Funds*® 2,54,00,011 10,21,98,771

2,54,04,924 10,22,03,654

Less:

Increase/Decrease in Fair Value (4,913) -592
Total of Investments measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 1,54,00,011 10,22,03,092
* Represents inv in the following :

- Adifya Birta Sun Life Liguid Fund, 14,718 745 Units of Face Value  339.6859-

- Adtiya Birla Sun Life Liguid Fund, 33,237,704 Units of Face Value T 339,264~

8 Trade Receivables
Considered Good Secured i e
Considered Good Unsecured 1L.77,61,048 5,12,47,492
Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 6,76,70,104 6,37,33,421
Credit Impaired - -
Less:
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (6,76,69,875) (6,37,33,421)
Met Trade Receivables 1,77,61,277 5.&.47,492
Tie Growup's exposure to eredit aind corvency visks, and loss allowanee related to trade receivables are disclosed in Nove 28
Trade Receivables ageing schedule
8.1 - Outstanding for following perivds from due date of payment as at 31st March 2023

Particulurs Less than 6 months | 6 months-1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good 1,77,33,086 4 689 14,534 - 8,740 1,77,61,048
(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have Q.00,798 13,61,556 33,67,625 6,38,979 166,435,165 2,29,14,124
significant increased in credit risk
(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables -considered good - - - - - -
{v)Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant = = - 4,47,55 981 44755981
increased in credit risk
(vi)Disputed Trade Receivables - Credil impaired - - - - - -
Total 1,86,33 884 13,66,245 33,82 158 6,389719 5,14,09,885 8,54,31,152.31
Less: Loss Allowanee (6,76,69,875)
Nel Trade Receivables 1,77,61.277




TFCT Financial Services Limited
Naotes to the C lidated Fi ial Stat t
(AN amaunts are i Indian Rupees, unless othernvive siaied)

32-0 ling for following periods from due date of payment as at 31st March 2022
Particulars Less than 6 months | 6 months-1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year Move than 3 year Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good 4,799,300 31,19,192 - - 1,30,000 5,12,47,492

(11} Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have 345936 B.04,334 9,16,796 505,685 1,64,04,690 1,89,77,441

significant increased in credit risk

(i11) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired = 2 = - -

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables -considered pood - - = = % X

(v)Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significamt - - - - 4,47,55,981 #,47,55,981

increased in credit risk

(vi)Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired = - - - = -

Total 4.83,44,236 39,23,526 9,16,796 5,035,685 6,12,90,670 11,49,80,913.48

Less: Loss Allowance (6,37,33,421)

Net Trade Receivables 5,12,47,492

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with hanks in current accounts 9,28,73,381 11,49.91,265

Cash on Hand 10,212 1,233

Shert term Deposits (maturity within 3 menths) 2.85,00,000 3,15,00,000
12,13,83,593 14,64,92, 498

Bunk balanees ather than Cash and Cash equivalents

Bank deposit accounts (more than 3 months but less than 12 months maturity) * 31,03,63,044 17,14,19,08]

Balances with banks held as margin money - 25.00,000
SIM,U-H !7.39,]9&

* Bank depostt aceonnts incliedes fived depostis with bonks aggreg

capital reguivements with SHCIL, NSCCL, NCL, MSEIL & NSE for trading m varions porijolios.

Loans

Other Loans and Advances
TDS and Advance Tax

Less:
Provision for lmpairment loss
Net

Other Curvent Assels

Interest accrued on Deposits
Balance with Revenue Autharities
Prepaid Expenses

DOther Advances®

Employee Advances

Other Assels

g tor & 15,6394, 439/ against which lien has been nrarked by the banks for meeiing the margio and base mimmum

6,22,00,623 6,69,75,134
£5,369 79,544
6,22,55,992 6,70,54,678
(28,79,929) (17,37,291)
5.94,06,063 6,53,17,387
1,50,10,528 85,32,693
24,99,244 2529777
60,82,635 67,94,838
27,89,782 1,26,754
291,519 5,82,300
16,076 10,887
LE6HTH 1557120

* Other advances inelides a s of Rs, 23,00,0000% paid to NSE which will be moved fo Security deposits wider note 5 Other Financial Axsets wpon confirmation of depast.




IFCT Finuncial Services Limited
Notes t the Conselidated Finaneiul

(AN curcruaty are i bedia Brpees, nidess ollierwise st

13 Equity Share Capital

Autharised
50,000,000 cquity shares of ¥ 10 cach

Issuedl, subseribed and puid-up

41,533,709 cquity shancs of & 10 eich Tully pad up

Asat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

50.00,00,000

50,00.00,000

41.55,37,090

41,53, 37,050

41,53 37,100

41.5337,01%0

Reconciliation of shares outstanding av the beginning and at the end of the reperting period

Equily shares

As ul beginaing of the perivd
Shares issued during the peried
At the end of the perind

Rights, preferences amd real

oy allached fo cquity shires

Asat 31 Murch 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Number Arnount Number Amount
41533709 41.53.37.090 4.1333,709 41,53,37,000
4,153,700 415337000 4,15.33,709 41.53.37.000

The Company lus n single chiss of equity shares. Accordingly, all couity shares mik equally with regard 1o dividends aml share in the Company”s residun] asseis on winding up. The equily slares are entitled 1o receive
dividend as declarcd from tie to time. The voling rights of an cquity sharchalder on a poll (nol on slow of kands) are in praporion to bistherfits shane of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. Vating riglis
catuiet be exercised in respect of slores on whick any call or ether swns presemly pavable lns ol been paid. Foilwee o pay any aimoun called up on shares may lead 1o their forfeiwre.

Cn winding up of the Company. 1he holders of equity shares will be enniled 1e reecive the residual assets of e Cempany, ining after

shares held

olall

al aniouds, in ion o the number of couity.

Particulars of sharcholders holding mere than 5% shares of a ¢lass of shares

[FCT Limited and Neminecs *
* ifriwate Hirlding Conpeany

Shares liebld by promoters at the end of the year

IFCI Limited and Noatinees

As at 31 March 2023

Asat 31 March 2022

Numher of shures % holling Number of shures % holding
held held
3,93.63 2049 0. 78%: 1.93.63 209 94.78%

As at 31 March 2022

Asat 31 March 2023
No. of Sharcs %o of Total Shares B iz Qg ke Nao. of Shares
JCRT

%% Change during the

% of Total Shares ’
year

39363804 U4 R - 3,93.,63.809

4. TR




IFCI Financial Services Limited
Notes to the €

lidated Financial St ts

(Al amownts ave in Indian Rupees, wiless otherwise staled)

i4 Other Financial Liabilities

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Security deposits collected 40,05,752 4235312

Employee Reloted payables 19,87,097 14,44,628

Credit balances m loan accounts 1,89.581 1,92,027
61,582,431 58,71,968

Security deposits

Non-Current 37,14,166 39,43,726

Current 24.68,264 19,28 241
61,82,431 58,71,968

The Growp s exposure o currency and lquidity risks related (o the above financial abilities is disclosed in Note 28,

Trade and Other Payables

Other Trade Payables 16,84,22 354 27,60,68,577

16,54,22,354 27,60,68,577

All trade payables are *Current’.

The Group's exposure to currency and liguidity visks relaied to trade payables iy disclosed in Note 28,

Trade Payubles ageing schedule

14.1 - Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at 31st March 2023

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total
MSME - - - - -
Others 15,92,26,223 20,39,187 38,98,038 26,58,906 16,84,22,354

Disputed dues - MSME
[isputed dues - Others

14.2 - Questanding for followin

g periods from due date of payment as at 31st March 2022

Particulars Less than | Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total
MSME - - - - -
Others 26,59,87 908 2387274 16,48,718 6044 677 27.60,68,577
Dizputed dues - MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Other Current Liabilities
Creditors for expenses 404,214 433,557
Expenses Payable * 58,21,287 63,11,240
Statutory Dues payable 28,96,853 41,19,776
Advance from Customers 2,39,08,787 1,15,85,994
Payable to Exchanges 83,971 278,989
Other liabilities 43,73,910 4538359
3,74,89,022 2,72,61,915

*Expenses payvable include expenses towards office mainienaice, commission pavable 1o sub brokers and provision for fitigation losses.

Provisions

Provisions for Employee Benefits

- Compensated Absences

- Gratuity
- Bonus

Provisions for Taxation

Provision for [ncome tax 2022-23

MNon-Current
Current

For detaily about the related employee benefit expenses, see Note 21.

88,92,652 20,37,676
104,918 =
20,010 16,332
91,07,580 80,54,008
84,32,983 73,24,242
674,597 7,29.766
91,07,580 80,54,008

*raﬂ am (2 o

o [ 218, TTK Road
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IFCI Financial Scrvices Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Al cunrowirts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Period from Period from
April 01, 2022 to April 01, 2021 to
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
18 Revenue from Operation
Brokerage On Stock Broking 11,01,53,041 13,43,70,514
Interest & Processing fees on loans 1,08,79,601 1,02,67 066
Commission On Mutual Fund 1,06,11,249 1,95,37,741
Depository Income 80,50,535 1,07,48,931
Merchant Banking & Valuation Fees 32,78,000 11,75,000
Account Opening Charges 1,30,500 1,91,100
Commission from Insurance Companies 99,144 1,91,065
14,32,02,069 17,64.81,418
Other Operational Income
Delayed Payment Interest 65,53,020 67,26,380
14,97,55,090 18,32,07,797
19 Other Income
Interest Income 1,65,37,160 1,53,16,350
Profit on Sale of Investments 62,16,393 89,25,602
Recovery of Deposits written off 27,00,000 -
Deputation Income 9,36,056 10,05,504
Miscellaneous Income 700,199 7,80,949
Interest on Income Tax Refund 42,900 58,050
Reversal of impairment provision on receivable - 1,88,82.254
Profit an Sale of Fixed assets - 1,12,493
2,71,32,708 4,50,81,241
20 QOperational Expense
Caommission Paid 4,07.33,173 5,24,73,253
Information Technology Exp 3537487 43,26,694
Data Feed Charges 2232897 20,59.681
Membership Fee 15,12,790 13,083,177
Fees To Clearing Member 11,08,273 29,01,328
DP Expenses 9.65.756 11,94,817
Broking Stamp Expenses 345028 57,600
5,04,35,404 6,43,16,551
21 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 7,41,59,554 7.62,39,994
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 47,18,418 51,00,819
Staff Welfare Expense 36,25,667 25,54,072
Gratuity 6,87,623 13,27,835
8,31,91,262 §,52,22,720
In respect of 9IN Credit Limited, there are no regular emplayee on its payrofl. However, the Company has been using the services of ¢ few
empiovees of its holding conpany, 1FCH Financial Services Limited on a cost sharing
Dasis and the same 1y accounted as reimbursement of expenses,
22 Finance costs

Bank Charges
Bank Guarantee Commission Expense

2,10,854 1,51,295
8,84,079
2,10,854 1035374

Tr

K Road

Alwarpet,




IFCI Financial Services Limited
Naotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(ANl autounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise siated)

4

2

2

5

o

Period from Period from
April 01,2022 to April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
23 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 14,66,795 11,35,094
Amartisation of Intangible Assets 3,62,640 1,52,647
18,29,435 12,87,742
Other Expenses
Rent 1,72,81,220 1,79,79,327
Professianal Charges 57.,36,538 55,44,527
Office Maintenance 54,48,568 54,601,279
Electricity Charges 38,65,595 33,02,618
Telephone Expenses 37.01,602 33,51,584
Annual Maintenance Charges 32,30,731 41,17,586
Insurance Expenses 29,06,504 14,48,374
Audit Fees 19,05,127 18,15,285
Net loss on fair value changes 18,859,339 52,52,394
Fines and Penaltics 13,93,922 -
Travelling & Conveyance Exp 11,69,242 7,713,921
Ineligible Input Tax Credit Written off 9,88 054 -
Other Administrative Expenses 9,04,589 8,77.312
Printing & Stationery 8,92 084 8,359,436
Litigation Losses 3,22,781 -
Postage & Telegram 297,280 5,34,222
Training Expenses 5,05220 1,23,596
Sitting Fees 5,61,500 5,02,000
Rates & Taxes 3,55,783 2,68,702
Repairs & Maintenance 2,59,647 4,19.115
Advertisement #9546 47,514
Profitfloss on Sale of Long Term Investiments 9,570 -
5.38,05,441 5,26,78,792
Payments to Auditors
As Auditor:-
Statutory Audit Fee 10,38,950 10,38,950
Fees for Limited review (Standalone & Consalidation) 542,115 542115
Tax Audit 96,000 96,000
Other Service 2,28.062 2793220
19,05,127 19,50,285
Impairment on financial instroment
Provision for Impairment on Trade receivable 39,39437 56,164
Provision for impairment in the value of investment 11,42,638 (2,83,224)
Bad debts written off 2,356 1,55.07.822
50,84,431 1,52,80,762
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable 1o equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares
owtstanding are as follows:
L Profit attributable o equity sharelolders (basic and difuted)
Frofit for the year, attributable to the equity holders {1,70,65,870) 72,04,471
ii. Weighted average ber af equity shares (hasic and diluted)
Opening balance 4,15,33,709 4,15,33,709
Additional shares issued during the year & »
Weighted average number of equity shares for the year 4,15,33,709 4,1533,709
Basic and Diluted EPS (0.41) 0.17

B ‘_".'
TTK Road
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Empleyee Benefit Expenses
l

Defined Contribution Plan
The Group has recognised an expense of T47.18,4 18 (Previous year T 31,00,819-) towards prevident fund and other welfare funds.

Defined Benefil Plan - Compensated Absence
The Group has recognised an cxpense of £ 33,96,67 ] /- dunng the vear ended March 31, 2023 as per actuanal valsation report, The closing balance of compensated abscence as at

march March 31, 2023 is T 88,92.652/-

Defined Benefit Plan - i

The Group has constituicd The Emplovees Group Gratwity Fund under the Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme administercd by the Life Insurance Corparation of India. Tho

sehome provides for Lump sum payment to vested employees ar retiemaent, death whilz in employment or on termination of

of an amount cquivalent to 13 days salary

pavable for each vear of completed service or pant thereof in excess of 6 months. Vesting occurs on completion of 3 vears of service,

These defined benzfit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity nsk, interest rate nisk and market (investment) risk,

Reconciliation of Amounts in Batance Sheet

For the perind from  For the period from

April 01, 2022 to April 11, 2021 to

Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the end of perisd 14302574 1,013,58,657
Fair Value of Plan Asscis at the end of period 1.43.02.136 1.50.53.442
Funded Stats - (SurplusyDeficst 438 (46,94, 785)
Liabilitv/{ Asscth recopmzed it Uie Bakanice Sheet * 438 [46,94,785)

Recon ion of the Net Defined Benefit (Asset) Linbility

The following lable shows a reconcibation from the opening balances te the dosing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components.

Il e e af defined bewefit ab, ¥

For the period from  For the period from
April 01, 2022 to April 01, 2021 to

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Defined Benefit Obligation a the beginning of period 1,03,58,637 1,27,43 666
Bencfits Paid (27,25,117) (13,70,689)
Current Sorvice Cost 10,32,701 14,71,129
Interest Cost 736,493 8,586,509
Actuarial (zninsylosses recognised in other camprehensive income 48,00, 840 (34,21,958)
Balance t the end of the year 143,021,574 1,03,58,657
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of period 1,43,02,574 1,03,58,657

Recaneiliation af fair vile of Pian Asser

For the period from  For the period from
April 01,2022 to April 01, 2021 to

March 31, 2013 Mlarch 31,2022
Fair value of Plan Assois a the beginning of perind 1,50,53 442 148,535,052
Tnterest Inceme 1081571 10,29,303
Actual Enterprise's Contribution 11,68 821 446,730
Actuzl Benefits Paid (27,25,117) (11,12,346)
Actuarial pains/{losses) recognised in ather conprek incang: (2.76.581) (1.65.817)
Balance at the end of the year 1,43,02,136 1,50,53.442
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of period 1,43,02,136 1,50,53,442
& Expense recognised In profit or loss
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Service Cost 19,32,701 14,710,129
Interest Cost 7.36,493 86,509
Expected Retum on Plan Assets (1081571} {10,29,803)
687,623 13,27,835
ii. Remeasirements recogmised in viler compreliensive income
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount recognized in OCat the beginning of period - =
Actuarial loss (gain)/Toss on Defined Benefit Obligation 48,99,840 (34,21,958)
Actuarial loss gain/less) on Plan asset (2.76.381) -1.65.817
51.76,421 132.56,141}
Defined Benefit Obligation
Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial plions ab the eporting date {exp d as
Mlarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discoont Rate # 7.20% 1.35%
Salary Esealation 0% for next year and
3% 3.00% thercafler

* fn respect of WCH Financial Services Linnted & 41 00, 039« (Previous Year & 2057, 185) is recagnived os Ned faiv value of Pian Axvset, bt respect of N Commedities Limited
¥ 633042 Previons Year 3 1,61,592) 15 recogntsed as Net fair value of Plan Asser, i respect of IFIN Sccwrities Finance Limited T 39,306~ (Previons Year 3 204,074} is
reeagnised as Nev Defined Benefir (Qblipaion, for the year ended March 31, 2023,

# I respeet of TFIN Securitics Finanee Linviwd diseomnt rate is 713 % pa,




IFCH Financial Services Limited
MNotes to the lidated Financial S

(A oty are in fndior Ropees, unlesy offeewire stafed)
38  Financinl instruments - Fair values and risk management

A Accounting classifications and fair values
The following tabke shows the carrving amounts and fair values of financinl assets and finaneial liabilities, including their tevels in fair value hicrarchy

Klarch 31, 2023

Amortised Cost FVTFL FVOCL Total carrying amount
Financinl assets
Trade Receivables 17761277 - ] 1,71,61,277
Cash and Bank Balances 12,13,83.593 - = 12,13,83,593
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents 31,03,63,044 31,03,63,044
Other Financial Assels 17,70.93.213 - - 17.70,93,213
Tnvestnients - 23400001 - 2,54,00,011
Loans |3,55.70,253 - - 13,55,70,253
Total Finaucinl nssels 76,21,71,380 2,54,00,011 — 78,75,71,392
Financial linbilities
Trade and Other Payables 16,84,22,354 - - 16,84,22,354
Other Financial Liabilitics 51,82.431 - - 6182431
Total Financinl linhilities 1746.04,785 - - 17,46,04,785
March 31, 2022

Amaortised Cost FVTPL FvOCI Total carrying amount
Financial nssets
Trade Receivaliles 5,12.47,492 . % 5,12,47,492
Cash and Bank Balances 14,64.92 495 - - |4,64,92 498
Bank halances other than Cash and Cash equivalents 17,39,19,081 17,32,19,081
Other Financial Assets 35,75,97,500 - - 35,7597 399
Investmenis - 11,2203 092 - 10,22,03,092
Loans B.30.53,258 530,53 258
Total Financial assets %1,23,09,928 111,22,03,092 - 91,45,13.021
Financial liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 21,60,68,577 - - 27,60,68.577
Other Financial Liabilitics 58,701,968 - - 38,71.968
Tatal Financial liahilitics 18,19,40,545 - - 28,19,40,545

-~ The fair value of investment (other than in subsidiary) is determined hased on Level-1 input i.e. the priez quoted in active marke!
- For all of the Group's assets and Kabilitics whieh are not carricd at fair value, diselosure of faie value is not required as the carmying amounts approximates the fair values,

B Financial risk managenient
‘The Group has exposurc to the follow ing risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit visk (see (B)i
- Liquidity risk (sce (D)
- Market risk (see (B)(iv)).

i, Risk nianagement framewvork
The Group's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establish ad ht of the Group's risk management framework. The board of directers along with the
top management are responsible for developing and monitenng the Group's nsk management pelicies.

The Growp's sk 2 palicies are established 1o identify and analyse the risks Fued by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to moniter risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regulacly to reflect changes in markel conditions and the Group's activilies. The Group, through its
training and W dards and | lures, aims o mainkain & disciplioed and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Group's Board of Dircclors how i pli with the Group’s risk management policios and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk

mamagement fruncwork in relation to the nsks faced by the Group,

i, Creale risk
Credit risk refer o the risk of default on its ebligation by the counter party resulting in financial loss. Credit risk always managed by the Group by proper approvals. Group's
madimum cxposure to eredit risk is limited to the earmying amount of financial assets recognized at the cnd of the rporting period, as summariscd belaw:

Carrying amount Carrying amount
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Receivables 1,77,61 277 5,12,47 492
Other Financial Asscis 17,70,43,213 35,75,97,599
Loans 13,55,70,253 8,30,53,258
33.04,24,744 49,18,98,.349

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by the credit miing agencies. Investments
primanily inelude nvestment in liquid mutual fund units and investment in equity instruments.
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Trade Reccivables

The Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for b and itien of loss all for Trade rcecivables It follows a simplified approach wherein an amount
caual to lifetme ECL s { and recognised as loss all Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defiult events over the expected life of
a financial aszet. ECL are measurcd in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probabil ighted omounis d d by a range of cutcomes. taking nte account the tme value

of muoney and other reasonable information svailable as a result of past events, eurrent conditions and forccasis of future cconomic conditions.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matnix lo measure lifetine ECL on its portfolie of trade recer T provision matrix is 1 based on historically
observed default rates over the expected life of trade reecivables and is adjusted for forward-looking esti At each reporting date, the hi Iy observed defiult raes and
changes in the forward-looking estimaros are updated. ECL allowance recognised (or reversed) during the period is recognised as income! expense in the statement of profit and
loss. The tof All for Expected Credst Loss are provided herem under-

Recancifiation of Alfewance for Expected Credit Loss:- March 31, 2023 March 31, 2021
Opening Balance 6,37.33.421 %.25.59.511

Created during the vear 3939437 56,164

(Reversed) duning the vear - (1.88,82.254)
Closmg Balinee 6,76.60 873 6,37,33,421

Other Financial Assets
This balance is prumanly constituted by deposit given to Stock exchange i relation to maistain minmum base capital requirement. The Group does not expect any losscs from non-
rii by these pter-partics,

Loans
Loans represents amount lend by the Group against sharcs / marmin funding and fully scoured. The Group docs not expect any losses.

Rl Liguidity risk

Liguidity nisk s the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty i meeting the obligations associated with its financial labiliies that are settled by delivering eash or anather
financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensurc, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics when they are due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, withaot incurring unacccptable lasses or risking damage to the Group's reputation

The Group™s principal sowrees of lquidity are cash and cash equivalents, the cash fow that is generated from eperations, The Group believes that the working capital is sufficient
to meed its current requiremients, Accerdingly, no lquidity nisk is perceived,

As of Mareh 31, 2023, the Group had 2 working capital of T 48,60,76,833/- including cash and bank balances of 2 12,13,83,593/~ Bank balances other than Cash and Cash
equivalents of ¥ 31,03,63 044/~ and current investments of T 2,54.00,01 1/~ Further the promoter of the Group have also committed 1o support the Group for there current and
future requircments.

fi d, and include I interest

The following arc the i I itics of financial habilitics ar the reporting date. The amounts arc gross and

payments and exclude the impact of netling agreements.

March 31, 2023
Contractual cash Mows

Carrying amount Total upto | year more than 1 year
Financizl liabilities
Trade Payables 16,54,22,354 (16,84,22,354) (16,84,22,354) -
Oiher financial habilitics Gl82431 (n1.32431) {24.68.264) (37.14. 166)
17,46,14,785 (17,46.,04,785) (17,08,90,618) {37,14,166)
March 31,2022
Currying nmount Contractual cash Mows
Tatal uptn | year more than | year
Financial liahilitics
Trade Pavables 27,60,68,577 (27,60,68,57T) (27,60,68.57T) 5
Other financial linhilitics 58,71,968 (58.71.968) (19.28.241) (39.43,726)
18,19.40,545 {28,19.40,545) (27,79,96,818) (j?AS.?Z_ﬁL
v Murker visk
Market nisk is the nisk that changes i market prices, such as foreign exchange rmtes, interest rates and equity prices, will affeet the Group's meome or e value of its holdings of
financial i The obj of market risk L i Lo manage and control market risk cxposures within prable p whil: optimising the raturn

C  Capital management
For the pumpose of the Group's capital management, capital ineludes issued equity eapital, share premium and all ather equity reserves aftributable to the cquity holders of the
Group. The primary chjective of the Group’s capital is to maximise the sharcholder value. The Group's policy is to maintain o strong capital buse £0 as (o maintain
investor, ereditor and market confidence and o sustain future develepment of the business. It sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term
operating plans which include capital and other strategic mvestments, The funding requirements are met through support from the Ultimate Holding Company. The Group
menitors capilal using a ratio of net debt to equily. For this purpose, net debt is defined as total Labilitics, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade payable, financial
liabilitics and other liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Equity eompnses all comp of equity
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29 Additional infarmation pursuant to pura 2 of general instructon Tor preparation of C i I Financial §
For the yeur ended March 31, 2023
Net Assel Share in profit or loss Share in other comyprehensive income Share in total comprehensive ineome
As % of
. As Yol A % of As % of total
Name of the catity
s eonsalidated net Amount conselidated prufit Amount sonslifated ather, Amuount comprehensive Amount
comprehensive z
ussels or loay income
income
Parcnt:
IFCI Finaneial Services Linited 104 R85 (8,00 63,685 129.93% (2.21.72.512) .93 % (47.07.555) 120R5% {2.08.80,087)
Tndiyn Sp H
IFIN Commoditics Limitcd =257 (L6685, 700 44.23% (7548917} 2.65% (4 A8.061) 35.95% (79.96.978)
IFIN Credit Limiled <. 70%: 45.67.877) -1.82% G.501.364 - - =2.93% G.51,.364
IFIN Scewritics Finance Limiled 0.24% 1529583 =714 LL20L04,215 0A42% (2L601) -53187% 1LIT82.614
Less:
Adj arising ol of i -1, TR%, {L15.40,247) - - -

Tatul 1005 54.!!___2"}5_,;39 Iﬂ% (l.TﬂN!HﬂII 1001 % (51,77,217) 10{1% (231.43,087)
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Al Segricnt Infermation
Thie Chiel Operating Decision Maker ({CODM) reviews the opesation of the group in two segments -

= Broking and relaled service © Broking, Depusiiory, Commission, vohwtion and other nelaied services inesime
= Fmemee and investing aetivities : Inderest, Processing Foes on bans s ofher inconte from investing ond financing solivitics

The Gronp's operaling sonien ane reflected hosed on prinei ple business aclivitics, the neture of service, the differing rsk and returns, (he orgrnisation

Sepment revenue, profil, asset s Fabilities huve been aceammted for o the basis ol therr relationship @ the operating selivitios of the segrment and amounts allocaled on neasonabile lasis,

Fur the venr Murch 31, 2023

l stnucture and Uie internal Graneicl reponting sy shem

For the year ended March 31, 2022

B ———— e LA A S ULy T T S T T anA
i Bruling and relarcd Finamee sl Broking anid related Finunce and
Parlkubis servlee inveating activities Umallotatel Tetal service investing wetlylties Unallsgaied T

Sepgment Hevenue

Extemnal Revenue (exeluding Inserest income) 14,72, 25043 63 69475 153757618 197242 665 03,604 - 20,62 46,269
Interest incane 60,73, 259 161,016,922 2.30,90, 1% T385.042 14457727 - 2,2042,76%
Inter-sepment nevenee - = e = 16,634 ] - 36,654
Tatal revenue (hechsding btersegment seveise) 15,4200, 402 2,26,86.397 = 17,68,47.798 20,48,51361 2,34.61,331 = 118325691
Trofit belore exceptonal i, interest and tax (2HE6241T) 114.04,242 = (1,74, 38,175) {157,211 1,14,75 684 - 93,02472
s+ Interest expense 1,98.542 12.312 - 210,854 10,29, 798 5576 1835374
Frolil before Lax (2.90,60,95%) L1351.930 - (1T, 69,020) {26,03,010) L10,70,108 - B4L.67.098
Less - Ineoan Tax U126 (6,12, 2835) (6,00, 159} T.052 12.35,573 1252627
Profit atter Tax {2,000, 711,155} 1,20,04,215 “ {1,70,63 370} i26,10,061) 98,014,533 - T2I4A471
Other Informathn

Segnent Depreciation and Amortisation 16,532,564 176 ATL 18,219,433 ,66,771 30908 IL87.742
Segmant non-eash vepense other than Deprecistion . - - « - -
Oiher Informston

For the year ended March 31, 2023 Foor the year coded March 31, 2022
Hrubing anil rvlated Finance and § Bruking and related Finance and :
sen e Investing activities Uaul kil o wervice investing aclivities Unallincatel el

Segmant Asset 57,52,92.151 29,498,074 - R1.01,96,525 69,74 48 350 20,14,90,761 - BEEY.39 142
Segmunt |iabikities 21,98,25711 13,72674 . 22,12,01,387 31.38.56,822 18.43,799 - 37700616
Capiwal Expeni capititl work-in-progres 1827377 360810 - 21,96,887 03, 0H),950 1142535 2 Td43.515

Intersegment pricing are o ann's ngih basis, Profior loss on filer segment tramsfer are elininated at the wrowp level.

Segment information fur secondary segment reporting (hy g
The Group epertes in ave peogrphicnl seginent namely "within India®, henee no geopraplical dischsure are required

Infornution ahout major custamce
No eustamer mdividially necounted for more thun 109% of the revenuie i the yeas ended harch 11, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

.

2nd Flaor
218, TTK Road
Alwarpet,

)
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1 Seat 1

31 Income Taxes (IND AS 12) :

Deferred Tax Asset  (Liability) as on 31st March, 2023 has been armived at as follows:

Timing Difference on account of Disallowances
Timing Difference on account of Carry Forward Losses

A
Less. Deferred Tax Liability ansing on account of :
Timing Difference on account of Depreciation
Timing Difference on account of Disallowances

B
Net Deferred Tax Asset/{Liability) (A+B)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
41,50,618 500,313
90,90,417 77,371,053

1.32,41,038 §1,37,366
(8,94,183) (4,90,725)
(8,94,183) (4,20,725)

1,23,46,353 77,46,642

It respect of 1IN Securities Fuiance Limited & 3,37, 736 and in respect of IFIN Commeodities Linited T 333,608« is recoguised as Deferred Tax Asser. In respect of IFCH Financial Services Limited T

116,75, 309 no Deferved Tax Asser iy recognised in thie books of accounts

3

)

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities

& Bank Guarantees (Note (i)}

b. Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts
. TDS demand eutstanding with TRACES (Nate (ii})
d. Disputed Income tax demand {Note (iii))*

Nate

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
- 1,00,00,000
7,04,68,000 6,01,11,000
1,02,017 1,19,453
1,56,34,638 1,56,34,638
8,62,04,655 10,58,65,001

i} The company during the previons yvear ended March 31, 2022 provided a corporate guarantee of Rs. 3,00,00,000- (sanctioned limit as at ihe Ralance Sheet date is Ry, 3,00,60,000.5) 10 HDFC Bank

Limited with respect to bank guarantees provided by them ta ihe cxchanges on behaif'af its wholly owaed subsidiary M's, FEIN Commoditics Limired,

(i) The Holding Company has the folfowing TDS Demand outsianding with TRACES as at Marciy 31, 2023

Fimancial Year Amaurnt
2022- 2023 6,355
2024 -2022 668
2020- 2021 192
2019- 2020 a4
Prior Years w7
102,017
(iii} The Holding Campany has tive following Disputed Income tax demend ax af Marveh 31, 2023
S.No Assessiment year Forum where appeal is pending Amount of d !
i 201112 Commussioner of income Tax (Appeals) 1,94229
2 2002-13 Commissioner e Income Tae (Appeals) 4,28,55,235
) 2004-13 Commissicner of licome Tax (dppeals) 5,64, 346
4 2005-16 Commissioner of Ineome Tax (Appeals) 522,985
3 204718 Contmissioner of Income Tax (Appealy) 1207843
1,56,34,638
* The Holding Company is in the provess of reconcifing the amount of | fax demand Aimg with the provisions of fax field in bocks.

33 Related parties

A Details of related parties and the relationships

Description of relationship
- Ultimate Helding Company

= Fellow Subsidiary Company

- Key management personnel

Name of the party
IFCI Limited

a) IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited

b) IFCI Factors Limited

©) IFC1 Infrastructure Development limited

d) Steck Holding Corporation of India Limited
&} MPCON Limited

1 Financial Servi imited
Mrs. Karpagam (w e f October (3, 2022)
Mr. Karra Visweswar Rao (Cessation w.e [ Octaber 03, 2022)
Mr, Ramesh N.G.S (w.e fMay 23, 2019) .
Mr. Jayesh Amichand Shah (w.e.f N ber 07, 2020)
Mr. Rajesh Kumar (w.e f November 07, 2020)
Mr. Alan Savio Pacheco (w.e.f March 12, 2021}
Mr. Atul Saxena (w.e.f May 19, 2022)
Mr. AV Pushparaj
Ms. Pragyan Shree (wee.f November 02, 2021)
IFIN rities Finanee Limi
Mrs. Karpagam (w.e.f Octoher 03, 2022)
Mr. AV Pushpara;
Ms. Sanjana Chhabra { we f October 10, 2022
Mr. Siddharth Dwivedi{Cessation w.e.f 15 June, 2022)
Karpagam Sundaramoorthy ( w.c.f October D4, 2022)
Ms, Pragyan Shree {w.c.f May 08, 2022}

Managing Director
Managing Director
Non-Executive Director
Mon-Executive Director
MNon-Executive Director
Nominee Director
MNominge Director

Chief Financial Officer (CFQ)

Company Secretary (CS)

Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Company Secretary
Company Seerotary

Director
Company Seeretary {CS)
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Ty ions with key gement personnel
i Key M P | Cony i
Period ended Period ended
__March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Shornt-tenn benefits
- Mr. AV Pushparaj 11,12,173 10,68,023
- Ms. Pragyan Shree 786,712 268,855
- Ms. Sanjanna Chhabra 233,733 -
- Mr. Siddharth Dwivedi 1,09,476 61,230
- Mr. Aby Eapen - 236,484
12A42,094 16,34,592
Siiting fees paid to Directors
- Mr. Rajesh Kumar 1,92,000 1,892,000
- Mr. Jayesh Amichand Shah 222,000 1,92,000
- Mr. Sanjay Wasantrao Tanksale 1,25,000 1,158,000
538,000 5,02,000
Related party transactions other than those with Key Management Personnel
Name of Related party Nature of Rel hiy Nature of Transactions ) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
M ing Director's I , travel and other
reimbursements paid / payable including taxes (19.44,876) (10,52,475)
. : T . \ s Brokerage on mutual fund 3,699 3,699
Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company T e e e %644 3,644
Transaction charges (4,76,810) -
C ission for referrals (including taxes) (1,29,459) (2,64,487)
Brokerag, 220,010 29.56,913
DP Income received 74,379 1,94.627
Insurance for Deputed Employees paid = -
9 . o Reiml of MD salary paid by IFCI Ltd (22,85,743) {39.76,201)
IFCI Limited Ultimate Holding Company iy (1,02.89,196) {1,03.37,196)
Reiml of rent 2 40,000
Reimbursement of Telephone & Others (16,835)
Salary deputation received 9,34,056 10,05,504
> T - Brokemge 79,672
IFCI Infrastructure Development limit Fellow Subsidiary Company TR e — TT00
N 5 i Reiml of Expenses-Maintenance & Electricil - 68,994
IFC Pl Sellen Y Company DP Income received 13,333 73,580
o Brokerag 33,175 1,66,684
IFCI Ventures Capital Fund Lid Fellow Subsidiary Company T Tocriie s 5,000 7250
Related Party Balances
Name of Related party Nature of Relationshig Nature of balance March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1FCI Limited Ultimate Holding Company Receivable/{Fayable) 6,25,504 (65,835)
Stock Holding Corperation of India Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company Receivable/{Payable) 5,70,11,183 15,00,25,760
IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company Receivable/(Payable) {39,840) #,555
IFCI Factors Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company Receivable/{Payable) . 14,553 -
IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited Associate Company Receivable/(Payable) (50,755) =
The Group when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified as opernting leases, has used practical expedients for net rec nighi-of-use assets and liabilities for leases of low value assets. As

the leases of the Group sre short term leases, the Group has charged the lease expense as 2 period cost in the Statement of Profit & Loss Account.

Statutory Reserve
As per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company is required (o create a reserve fund at a rate of 20% of the net profit after tax of the Company every year. Considering the Profit
after tax for the year ended 31 March 2023, Rs,.7,80,607/- is transferred (o the statutory reserve as required under Section 45-1C of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, 1934,

During the current year and the previous year, the Group has not eamed any income nor spent any amount in foreign exchaniges

1ok

According lo iformation with the M on the basis of intimation received from suppliers reparding their status under the Micro, Medium and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(MSMED Act), the group has no amounts due to Micro, Medium and Small Enterprises under the said act as at March 11, 2023,

5L No Fa_l_'i_is'lia_rs March 31,2023 March 31,2022
(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the period g 2
{b) The delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the appointed date during the year 3 =

(¢} [nterest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act
(d) Normal Interest due and payable during the year, for delayed payments, as per the agreed terms = E
(e) Total interest acorued during the year and remaining unpaid = =

Thiix informaiion has been determined 1o the extent sueh partes have been ideniified on the basts of fnforuation avadable with the Group.
Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to the current yesr classification.

The Schedule [I- Divison I mandates to rewnd off the figures to the nearest hundreds, thousands, lakhs or millions, or decimals thereo depending on the Total Income of the Group. However, the Group has
opted to round off the figures to nearest rupess in the view belter p and und fing of the users of the Financial Statements, .

Third Party bulances are subject to confirmations and recanciliations if any,
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With respect to Subsidiary Company IFIN Securities Finance Limited, the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in the global
and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the economic activities, The Covid-19 post lockdown has not resulted i material decline in prices of listed / quoted equily shares & mutual funds and the
loans against shares, mutual funds and margin funding ponfolio have net witnessed & matenal decling in the underlying securily value. As a result of the above, the company has created its Expected Credit
less (ECL) provisioning based on past history of the borrowers as applicable, and nisk of credit default that may result due to likely stress in the financial position of our borrowers. Moreover, due to the

iated with the pandemic, the actual impact may not be in line with current estimates. The Company will continue to closely monitor any matenal changes to future
due to the impact of pandemic. Further, the impact assessment does not indicate any adverse impact on the ability of the company to continue as a going concern

Other Notes

a) The Group dees not have any Benami property, where any ding has been initiated or pending against the Group for halding any Benami property.

b) The Group has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in agoregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assels.
) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

d) Considering the information available with the Group, the Group does not have any transactions with companies siruck off

€) There are no Scheme of Ar 15 app, 1 by the Comy Authority im terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.
£} The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any ather | or entity(ies), including foreign entitics
{Intermediaries) with the und, ding (whether led in writing or otherwise] that the Intermediary shail (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatscever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

£} The Group has also not received any fund from any person{s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the und ding {whether ded in writing or otherwise) that the Group
shall (i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (i) provide any puarantee,

security or the like on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

h) The Group do not have any transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during

any of the years.
i) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto eurrency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
} Financial Ratios :

. As at 31st March 2023 As at 3ist March 2022
S.No Particulars Components — = -
Fig. in ¥ Ratio Fig. in ¥ Ratio
1 Current Ratin
Current Asset Financial Assets + Other Current Assets 59,51,31,073 75,41,57.746
S Financinl Liabilities -+ Other Current Liabilities + 20,90,54,237 333 30,59,94 499 146
Current Liabilities A
Provisions
2 Return on Equity Ratio :
Met Profit after Taxes Profit {Loss) for the year after taxes (1,70,65,870) 72,04,471
Average Sharcholder's Equity Enquity share capital + Other Equity 66,01,16,983 -3% 67,12,38,526 1%
3 Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio
Net Credit Sales Revenue from Operations 14,97,55,080 18,32,07,797
Average Accounts receivable Average Trade receivables 345,04 385 434 440,78 448 4.16
4 Trade Payables Turnover Ratio ¢
Annual Nel Credit Purchases (Operating Cost) Operational expense 5,04,35,404 6,43,16,551
Averane Accounts payable Average Trade Payables 33.99.81,983 0.15 25,57,70,806 0.25
£ Net Capital Turnover Ratio ;
Sales Revenue from Operations 14,97,55,090 18,32,07,797
Working Capital Current Asszets - Current Liabilities 48,60,76,836 031 44 81,63,247 041
6 Net Profit Ratio :
Net Profit Profit (Loss) for the vear after taxes {1,70,65,870) 72,04,471
Sales Revenue from Operations 14,97,55,090 -11% 18,32,07,797 4%
7 Return on Capital Employed ;
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes Profit before Interest and Tax Expense (1,76,69,029) 84,67,098
Capital Employed ?:I::i:;::;::;:sl + Other Equity + Current and Non 64,89,95, 440 3% 67,12,38, 526 1%
§ Rermn on Investment :
Met Profit after Taxes Trofit (Loss) for the year after tases (1,70,65,870) T04,471
Assets Total Assets - Current Liabilities 66,11,42,589 -3% 68,29,44,642 1%
Note:
1. The variance in the aforesaid fi il ratics as comy d 10 the previaus year is due to loss incurred and decrease in revenne of the group.
2. The Debe-Eguity Rario, Debr Service Coverage Ratio and Iventory mrover ratio are not applicable to the Group,
The Signiffcant aceounting policies and Noies to Accounts are an integral part of these financial siatements
Ax per our aifached Report of even date
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